**Edexcel GCSE** 

# **Specification**

# Edexcel GCSE in Italian (1237) First examination 2003 December 2000



Edexcel is one of the leading examining and awarding bodies in the UK and throughout the world. We provide a wide range of qualifications including academic, vocational, occupational and specific programmes for employers.

Through a network of UK and overseas offices, Edexcel's centres receive the support they need to help them deliver their education and training programmes to learners.

For further information please call our Customer Response Centre on 0870 240 9800, or visit our website at www.edexcel.org.uk

#### Acknowledgements

This specification has been produced by Edexcel on the basis of consultation with teachers, examiners, consultants and other interested parties. Edexcel recognises and values all those who contributed their time and expertise to the development of GCSE specifications.

Authorised by Sue Parker

Publications Code UG008963

All the material in this publication is copyright © Edexcel Foundation 2000

# Contents

Introduction	1
Key features	1
Summary of the specification content and scheme of assessment	2
Availability of external assessment	4
Prior learning and progression	4
Forbidden combinations and links with other subjects	4
Specification aims and assessment objectives	5
National Qualifications Framework criteria	5
Aims	5
Assessment objectives	5
Knowledge, skills and understanding	6
Specification content and scheme of assessment	7
Paper 1: Listening and responding (Assessment Objective 1)	7
Paper 2: Speaking – Terminal examination (Assessment Objective 2)	9
Paper 3: Reading and responding (Assessment Objective 3)	12
Paper 4: Writing – Terminal examination (Assessment Objective 4)	14
Paper 4: Writing – Coursework option (Assessment Objective 4)	15
Coursework guidance summary	16
Entry tiers	22
Relationship of assessment objectives to scheme of assessment	22
Internal assessment moderation procedures	22
Awarding, reporting and equivalence	23
Language of assessment	23
Students with particular requirements	23
Private candidates	23
Grade descriptions	24
Assessment criteria	26
Speaking	26
Writing	30
Writing – Coursework	38
Assessment overview	41

Learning and teaching requirements for key stages	
3 and 4	42
The wider curriculum	44
Key skills	44
Social, cultural, spiritual, moral and ethical issues	44
Education for citizenship	44
Information and communication technology	45
Environmental education, health and safety education and the European dimension	45
Textbooks and other teaching resources	46
Support and training	48
Training	48
Website	48
Edexcel publications	48
Regional offices and Customer Response Centre	49
Appendices	51
Appendix 1 – Rubrics	53
Appendix 2 – Linguistic structures	55
Appendix 3 – Minimum core vocabulary	59
Appendix 4 – Procedures for internal assessment	81
Appendix 5 – Key skills	99

# Introduction

This specification offers positive and appropriate assessment for modern language learners at key stage 4. Building on best practice, it affords students and teachers choice, flexibility and scope for linking learning activities to student interests and new technology. It promotes the development of different language skills and provides opportunities to apply these across a range of relevant contexts.

## **Key features**

- ÷ Streamlined list of topic areas.
- Flexible approach to written coursework option free choice of topics or Edexcel taskbank.
- ÷ Increased choice of writing tasks at both tiers.
- ÷ Choice of Edexcel or teacher-marked oral (if coursework not undertaken).
- ÷ Increased focus on ICT.
- + Full INSET support and professional advice and guidance.
- ÷ Coursework, student and teacher guides.
- + Bilingual glossaries and student handbooks.
- + Progression route to Edexcel AS/A GCE specifications.

Other GCSE qualifications in the Edexcel modern foreign languages portfolio				
In addition to the modern foreign language GCSEs featured in this specification, Edexcel also offers:				
French	(1226)			
German	(1231)			
Spanish	(1246)			
Urdu	(1901)			
French – short course	(3226)			
Single tier GCSE specification	ons are available in:			
Arabic	(1606/7*)			
Chinese	(1666/7*)			
Japanese	(1752/3*)			
Modern Greek	(1776)			
Russian	(1241)			
*An alternative three skills GCSE (no speaking test) is available in Arabic, Chinese and Japanese.				

# Summary of the specification content and scheme of assessment

This specification provides a framework for the development of effective language learning and use of the target language and relates to the requirements of the national curriculum orders for modern foreign languages in England, Wales and Northern Ireland.

It combines an emphasis on communication skills with reward for practical knowledge and understanding of language structures and grammar. Rather than develop language within numerous topic areas, students will be encouraged to adapt and apply their target language to different contexts and situations. All papers are designed to match the language experience and maturity of candidates at key stage 4 and will draw on some of the language knowledge developed at key stage 3 or during initial exposure to the target language. The specification provides student-focused papers for listening and responding, speaking, reading and responding and writing. It also offers a written coursework or internally marked speaking test option.

A list of general topic areas and related sub-topics has been produced to provide learners with a clear focus but students will not cover all of these in each part of the examination. The speaking tests, for example, afford students an open choice of first conversation topic, but this is complemented by a reduced number of sub-topics for rôle-plays and for second conversation exploitation. Similarly, the written coursework option enables teachers and students to select three main topic areas and all writing 'terminal' papers will involve a choice of questions.

Aggaggmant ab	Assessment shisting Denon Mathed of Time				
Assessment obj	jective	Paper	Method of assessment	Time	
1 (Listening)	25%	1F – Foundation	Terminal examination (externally assessed)	30 mins (+ 5 mins reading time)	
		1H – Higher		40 mins (+ 5 mins reading time)	
2 (Speaking)	25%	2F – Foundation	Terminal examination	8-9 mins	
		2H – Higher	(internally <b>or</b> externally assessed*)	11-12 mins	
		3F – Foundation	Terminal examination	40 mins	
3 (Reading)	25%	3H – Higher	(externally assessed)	1hr	
		4F – Foundation	Terminal examination	50 mins	
4 (Writing)	25%	4H – Higher	(externally assessed)	1hr	
		4C – Coursework option	Internal assessment	N/A	

Students should be entered for **each** paper at **either** Foundation **or** Higher Tier. The grid below shows the relationship between assessment objectives and examination components. Full assessment criteria for speaking and writing papers are given in this specification.

\* Please refer to section Availability of external assessment.

NB: Due to revised MFL GCSE criteria, **the 2003 specification does not permit dictionary access in any terminal paper**. However, students should continue to make use of a dictionary within the written coursework option and for general language-learning purposes.

## Topic areas with related sub-topics

	1		
At home and abroad	÷	Things to see and do	
	÷	Life in the town, countryside, seaside	
	÷	Weather and climate	
	÷	Travel, transport and directions	
	÷	Holidays, tourist information and accommodation	
	÷	Services and shopping abroad	
		Customs, everyday life and traditions in target- language countries and communities	
Education, training and employment	÷	School life and routine	
	÷	Different types of jobs	
	÷	Job advertisements, applications and interviews	
	÷	Future plans and work experience	
House, home and daily routine	÷	Types of home, rooms, furniture and garden	
	÷	Information about self, family and friends	
	÷	Helping around the house	
	÷	Food and drink	
Madia antartainment and youth culture	÷	Sport, fashion and entertainment	
Media, entertainment and youth culture	÷	Famous personalities	
	÷	The media	
	÷	Current affairs, social and environmental issues	
Social activities, fitness and health	÷	Free time (evenings, weekends, meeting people)	
	÷	Special occasions	
	÷	Hobbies, interests, sports and exercise	
	÷	Shopping and money matters	
		Accidents, injuries, common ailments and health issues (smoking, drugs)	

## Availability of external assessment

Students may be externally assessed in all four skills. First assessment of this specification will be in June 2003. Assessment will be available in each summer examination session thereafter.

Centres may offer students a written coursework option instead of the terminal writing paper. In this case, students' work will be internally marked and sent to Edexcel for final moderation. Similarly, centres may undertake internal marking of speaking tests; but they are unable to do this if they also offer the written coursework option. This reflects the revised GCSE criteria for Modern Foreign Languages which restrict **internal assessment to 30% (maximum) of the total marks** across all papers. There is no tier of entry for the written coursework option.

## **Prior learning and progression**

This specification builds on the knowledge, understanding and skills established by the national curriculum at key stages 1, 2 and 3. It provides a foundation for further study at levels 2 and 3 in the National Qualifications Framework, including AS and Advanced GCEs and Applied language optional units within AVCE programmes.

## Forbidden combinations and links with other subjects

Every specification is assigned to a national classification code indicating the subject area to which it belongs. Centres should be aware that students who enter for more than one GCSE qualification with the same classification code will have only one grade (the highest) counted for the purpose of the school and college performance tables.

The classification code for this specification is 5690.

Candidates entering for this specification may not, in the same series of examinations enter for any other specification with the same title. It is not permitted to take both short course and full course GCSE examinations in the same language.

# Specification aims and assessment objectives

### **National Qualifications Framework criteria**

This specification is based on the common criteria and the GCSE criteria, which are prescribed by the regulatory authorities, including QCA, and are mandatory for all awarding bodies. It is also derived from the prescribed subject criteria for modern foreign languages.

## Aims

The aims of this GCSE specification are to provide a framework for the development of different skills, knowledge and understanding in a modern foreign language. It is designed to enable students to:

- + develop understanding of the spoken and written forms of the modern foreign language in a range of contexts
- + develop the ability to communicate effectively in the modern foreign language, through both the spoken and written word, using a range of vocabulary and structures
- + develop knowledge and understanding of the grammar of the modern foreign language, and the ability to apply it
- + apply their knowledge and understanding in a variety of relevant contexts which reflect their previous learning and maturity
- + develop knowledge and understanding of countries and communities where the modern foreign language is spoken
- + develop positive attitudes to modern foreign language learning
- + provide a suitable foundation for further study and/or practical use of the modern foreign language.

### Assessment objectives

All candidates will be required to demonstrate an ability to:

A01	understand and respond to spoken language	(25%)
AO2	communicate in speech, showing knowledge of and applying accurately the grammar and structures prescribed in the specification	(25%)
AO3	understand and respond to written language	(25%)
AO4	communicate in writing, showing knowledge of and applying accurately the grammar and structures prescribed in the specification.	(25%)

## Knowledge, skills and understanding

The specification complements and corresponds to the learning and teaching requirements for key stages 3 and 4 of the national curriculum for England as listed below:

- + acquiring knowledge and understanding of the target language
- + developing language skills
- + developing language-learning skills
- + developing cultural awareness
- + breadth of study.

Further information is given in Learning and teaching requirements for key stages 3 and 4.

Foundation Tier candidates will be required to:

- ÷ listen and respond to different types of spoken language
- + express themselves in speech using a range of vocabulary, syntax and structures
- read and respond to different types of written language, including texts from ICT-based sources
- + express themselves in writing using a range of vocabulary, syntax and structures
- understand and apply the grammar of the modern foreign language, as detailed in the specification for Foundation Tier
- + respond to materials from countries and communities where the modern foreign language is spoken.

In addition, Higher Tier candidates will be expected to:

- + listen and respond to longer and more complex extracts of spoken language, including some unfamiliar material
- speak at greater length, using a wider range of vocabulary and more complex syntax and structures
- + read and respond to longer and more complex written texts, including some unfamiliar material
- + write at greater length, using a wider range of vocabulary and more complex syntax and structures
- understand and apply the grammar of the modern foreign language, as detailed in the specification for Higher Tier.

# Specification content and scheme of assessment

# Paper 1: Listening and responding (Assessment Objective 1)

Two tests will be set, one for the Foundation Tier and one for the Higher Tier.

Candidates will be required to listen to a range of authentic recorded material spoken by native speakers. The teacher supervising the test will be required to stop the tape at appropriate points to allow candidates sufficient time to write their answers. Extracts will be of varying lengths and no undue burden will be placed on memory. Speed of delivery will range from near normal to normal and all recordings will be heard twice. Students will be given five minutes reading time immediately before the start of this examination paper. Before each section, the topic title and scenario will be introduced followed by the rubric 'Read the following questions'.

The questions will elicit a combination of non-verbal responses, target-language answers and answers in English. Up to 20% of the tasks set will require responses in English and these tasks will usually be placed at the end of the test.

A range of test-types will be used in each tier and may include grid completion, multiple-choice, matching, form or plan completion, note-taking, questions in the target language and interpreting tasks. Where a response is required in English, tasks could include guided note taking or summary.

#### Assessment

Marks will be allocated for communicating an easily identifiable correct response and no marks will be awarded for use of English where a target-language response is required (and vice versa). Foundation Tier questions will be presented in a 'peaks and troughs' format, which encourages candidates to complete the whole paper. A student experiencing difficulty with one particular task may find the next task more accessible since there is no progressive incline of difficulty.

#### Foundation Tier (Paper 1F)

The recorded material may include instructions, announcements, telephone messages, short narratives, descriptions and dialogues, short news items and advertisements.

Candidates will be required to:

- + identify and note main points
- + extract specific details.

Additionally, questions targeted at grades D and C may also require candidates to:

- + identify points of view
- + show some understanding of familiar language in unfamiliar contexts
- + understand reference to past, present and future events.

It is anticipated that in the Foundation Tier the majority of the tasks will not require a written response in the target language.

#### Higher Tier (Paper 1H)

The recorded material will include some items from the Foundation Tier, and, in addition, a wider variety of spoken texts, such as extracts from radio broadcasts, discussions, presentations and interviews.

Candidates will be required to:

- ÷ identify and note main points
- + extract specific details
- ÷ identify points of view
- + recognise attitudes and emotions
- + draw conclusions
- ÷ understand reference to past, present and future events.

# Paper 2: Speaking – Terminal examination (Assessment Objective 2)

The format of the test is the same for Foundation and Higher Tiers as all candidates will carry out two rôle-play tasks and take part in a conversation on two topics. Although assessment should be qualitative rather than quantitative, it is expected that the speaking tests will last 8-9 minutes (Foundation) and 11-12 minutes (Higher). Candidates are able to score the highest marks without a 'perfect' command of the target language.

#### **Rôle-plays**

The rôle-play tasks will be presented in the form of instructions in English together with visual stimuli or short prompts in the target language. **All** rôle-plays will be marked for **communication only**. A grid is provided below to indicate possible situations for the different types of rôle-play. Candidates will be allocated preparation time (without dictionary access) immediately in advance of the test.

Rôle-play A is a simple transaction requiring the student to convey four basic pieces of information. It will usually be a task related to shopping, tourist requirements, café/restaurant or accommodation situations that will involve a limited range of vocabulary and structures. (Foundation Tier only).

Rôle-play B is a transaction that will involve a limited amount of unpredictability (one element) and will occur in a wider range of settings. (Foundation and Higher Tiers).

Rôle-play C will involve two unpredictable elements and will cover a different topic area. Candidates will be expected to expand on the bullet points as appropriate (Higher Tier only).

#### Possible topics/situations for rôle-plays A, B and C

Topics for rôle-play	Rôle-play A	Rôle-play B	Rôle-play C
Shopping and services	✓	✓	
Tourist requirements	✓	✓	
Café/restaurant	✓	✓	
Accommodation (including staying with a family)	✓	✓	✓
Travel arrangements		✓	✓
Entertainment		✓	✓
School		✓	✓
Telephone calls – social and work place (may include arranging meetings)		~	✓
Asking for information		✓	✓
Applying for a job			✓
Reporting and dealing with problems			✓

#### Conversations

Candidates must undertake two conversations and will be assessed globally on the basis of their overall performance across both topics.

#### **Conversation 1**

Candidates will have a **free choice** of first conversation topic. This will be agreed with the teacher in advance of the speaking test and should relate to any of the five main topic areas. For the first conversation, students may bring brief notes or a visual stimulus into the examination (no larger than an A5 piece of paper). A few target-language bullet points or a simple 'spider diagram' would be acceptable. Candidates will have the opportunity to introduce briefly their chosen topic (one minute maximum) to enable them to make a confident start.

Although there is a free choice of topic area for the initial conversation, possible examples of student topic choices are given below. Exact topic choice will depend on the interests and language experience of the individual student. Those aiming at grade C and above will be expected to express opinions and use past, present and future tenses.

At home and abroad	My best holiday ever
Education, training and employment	My work experience at
House, home and daily routine	My ideal home
Media, entertainment and youth culture	(famous personality)
Social activities, fitness and health	My free time

#### **Conversation 2**

The second topic will be allocated on a random basis as prescribed by Edexcel and will require the teacher-examiner to choose from a limited choice of two. (This will ensure that the second conversation topic is different to the main topic area selected for the first conversation.) Guidance on the types of question to be asked will be supplied to ensure that candidates are given the opportunity to demonstrate their linguistic skills at an appropriate level. These will be sample questions showing how a conversation may be developed to allow candidate expansion within the related topic area, and are not compulsory. Teachers will be free to develop **any** related conversation sub-topic or sub-topics and possible examples of these are identified in the following grid. Although the choice and use of these sub-topics is at the teacher's discretion, there is no requirement to develop any additional sub-topics to those listed, although this will be permissible.

As in the first conversation, those aiming at grade C and above will be expected to express opinions and use past, present and future tenses.

Suggesteu sub-topics	
At home and abroad	My region/town (or region/town in target- language country that the student has either visited or researched)
	Holidays
Education, training and employment	School life and routine
	Future plans
	Work experience (if appropriate)
House, home and daily routine	My home and domestic routine
	Family
	Friends
	Food and drink
Media, entertainment and youth culture	Television/cinema/music/theatre
Social activities, fitness and health	Sports/exercise
	Free time/interests
	Health issues

**Suggested sub-topics** 

For example, a student undertaking the second conversation topic area of Education, training and employment could talk about all the related sub-topics (school life and routine, future plans and work experience) or focus on just one. A revised bank of possible linked questions will be available.

#### **Assessment arrangements**

All speaking tests will be conducted by the teacher-examiner and recorded on a date chosen by the centre within a period specified annually by Edexcel. Centres send tests to Edexcel for marking or, if not offering the written coursework option, may undertake teacher-examiner marking. Edexcel moderates all centre marking. Please refer to the assessment criteria for marking grids. Further support (including student samples and assessment commentaries) will be available in the Edexcel teachers' guide and at INSET training sessions.

# Paper 3: Reading and responding (Assessment Objective 3)

Two tests will be set, one for the Foundation Tier and one for the Higher Tier.

Candidates will be required to read a range of authentic written material of varying lengths. The questions will elicit a combination of non-verbal responses, target-language answers and answers in English. Up to 20% of the tasks set may require responses in English. These tasks will usually be placed at the end of the test.

A range of test-types will be used in each tier and may include grid completion, matching, form or plan completion, multiple-choice, note-taking, cloze tests, summary, questions in the target language and interpreting tasks. Where a response is required in English, tasks could include guided note-taking or summary.

Students will be exposed to a range of stimuli (advertisements, articles and short passages) and these will include texts from ICT based sources.

#### Assessment

Marks will be allocated for communicating an easily identifiable correct response and no marks will be awarded for use of English where a target-language response is required (and vice versa). Foundation Tier questions will be presented in a 'peaks and troughs' format which encourages candidates to complete the whole paper. A student experiencing difficulty with one particular task may find the next task more accessible since there is no progressive incline of difficulty.

#### Foundation Tier (Paper 3F)

The material for the test may include signs, notices, short advertisements, messages and letters (both printed and hand-written), information leaflets and newspaper and magazine extracts. Candidates will be required to:

- ÷ identify and note main points
- + extract specific details.

Additionally, questions targeted at grades D and C may require candidates to:

- + identify points of view
- ÷ show some understanding of unfamiliar language
- ÷ understand reference to past, present and future events.

Most tasks at Foundation Tier will not require a written response in the target language.

#### Higher Tier (Paper 3H)

The test will include some items from the Foundation Tier. In addition, candidates will be required to respond to some longer texts, both factual and non-factual.

Candidates will be required to:

- ÷ identify and note main points
- + extract specific details
- ÷ identify points of view
- + recognise attitudes and emotions
- ÷ draw inferences and conclusions
- ÷ understand reference to past, present and future events.

# Paper 4: Writing – Terminal examination (Assessment Objective 4)

Two tests will be set, one for the Foundation Tier and one for the Higher Tier. These reward students for communication and content as well as for knowledge and application of grammar and structures.

#### Foundation Tier (Paper 4F)

Candidates will be required to complete four tasks in the target language, ranging from one which requires single word or short sentence answers, to a longer piece of writing related to a variety of topics, including past, present and future events.

- Task 1:Candidates will be required to write short lists or fill in a form or questionnaire<br/>using individual words. The task will be marked for communication only and<br/>instructions will be in English. (10 marks)
- Task 2:Candidates will be required to write about five simple phrases in response to visual<br/>and simple target-language stimuli. Task instructions will be in English. (10 marks)
- Task 3:Candidates will be required to write a postcard or similar message of<br/>approximately 30 words. Task instructions will be in English. (10 marks)
- Task 4:Candidates will be offered a choice of task and will be required to produce a piece<br/>of continuous writing of between 70 and 80 words. A task could be a reply to a<br/>short letter in the target language, the expansion of notes or be based on visuals or<br/>other simple stimuli written in the target language. Instructions will be given in<br/>English. (20marks)

#### Higher Tier (Paper 4H)

Candidates will be required to complete two tasks in the target language.

The first task of the Higher Tier will be the final task of the Foundation Tier. Additionally candidates will be required to produce a piece of writing of about 150 words. They will select one task from a choice of two.

Candidates may be required to narrate events, express ideas and justify points of view. They will be expected to produce longer sequences of writing, using a wider range of vocabulary, structures and time references.

- **Task 1:** Candidates will be offered a choice of task and will be required to produce a piece of continuous writing of between 70 and 80 words. A task could be a reply to a short letter in the target language, the expansion of notes or be based on visuals or other simple stimuli written in the target language. Instructions will be given in English. (20 marks)
- **Task 2:** Candidates will be offered a choice of task and will be required to produce a piece of about 150 words. Questions will be set so that candidates can undertake either narrative or discursive writing. These may be factual or imaginary narratives or involve extended letter writing. They may be based on stimuli in the target language, visuals or a combination of both. Instructions will be given in the target language. (30 marks)

# Paper 4: Writing – Coursework option (Assessment Objective 4)

Centres may offer written coursework as an alternative to the terminal assessment of Paper 4 Writing. There are no tiers of entry for this option which offers opportunities for creative targetlanguage writing. It may help to increase motivation since students are free to undertake coursework that clearly reflects their interests and experiences. Coursework will be assessed for communication as well as for knowledge and application of grammar and structures.

Students will be required to submit **three** units of work which must each relate to a different main topic area (At home and abroad, Education, training and employment, House, home and daily routine, Media, entertainment and youth culture and Social activities, fitness and health).

Teachers should encourage students to produce a number of pieces of work for each unit in order that their best work can be selected for assessment.

The number of words that candidates are expected to submit is linked to the requirements for the terminal examination in this skill area. Students aiming for Grades G-D should aim to submit 250-350 words over the three units. Students aiming for Grades C-A\* should aim to submit 500-600 words. These word counts should be equally divided between all three units whenever possible.

Please refer to the Coursework guidance summary for further information.

## **Coursework guidance summary**

#### **Choosing appropriate tasks**

A unit may consist of a collection of simple tasks possibly involving short sentences or substitution (appropriate for grades G, F and E) or it may be a single piece of extended writing. Coursework tasks can be set for exploitation at different levels and should enable students to access the full range of marks. This specification lists a range of possible coursework tasks although these are not prescriptive and can be adapted. Teachers are advised to refer to both the grade descriptions and the assessment criteria for writing (coursework) when trying to choose an appropriate task or stimulus. Tasks set for those aiming at grade C or above must provide opportunities for students to give opinions, to demonstrate competence in the manipulation of different tenses and to undertake both factual and imaginative writing. In addition, those seeking grade A or above will need to produce evidence of extended writing skills and justification of ideas/points of view.

When a unit of coursework is made up of two or more pieces of work, these should be linked to a discrete theme within the main topic area.

#### Authentic source material

Authentic material can be gathered from a variety of sources and can be used at all levels. Websites, newspapers and magazines, for example, will not only provide stimulating articles for candidates at the higher end of the ability range, but also advertisements, pictures, entertainment guides, etc which can be used for all candidates. Most teachers are in the habit of gathering authentic materials such as brochures, information leaflets, pictures, etc on trips abroad and pupils should be encouraged to do the same. Over time it is possible to build up an extensive bank of authentic material.

#### Other sources

Suggestions for further sources are given below, but remember that stimulus material does not have to be in the target language, so there may be many more sources available to you.

- + Websites
- + Language specific items in The Guardian Education
- + Charities such as Action Aid, Oxfam, Friends of the Earth
- + Video/films, including language programmes for schools
- + Link/exchange schools (especially for school magazines)
- + Foreign language assistants and other members of staff

#### Preparation and pre-teaching

A certain amount of the work may be done outside the classroom, in particular where a task requires the use of information and communication technology (ICT) or where the task is based on extended reading. However, it is expected that **at least** a third of the work will be done under controlled conditions in class time and this **must include one complete coursework unit**. Students may have access to a dictionary at all stages during the production of their work and this may include online dictionaries and spellcheckers.

Guidance on activities that may be appropriate for students aiming at particular grades is provided in the following grids and more suggestions are given in the coursework guide. These tasks are divided into three types, ranging from those that require individual words and phrases to those that require extended responses using a wide range of vocabulary and structures. Examples of stimulus material that could form the basis for some of these tasks will be provided in the Teachers' Guide, together with authentic student samples and assessment commentaries. The targeted grades given in the following chart are only suggestions and it is recognised that many of the tasks could be expanded to enable students to demonstrate linguistic skills at a higher level than those indicated. Teachers will be free to use this material; alternatively they may provide their own or use the task bank as the basis for creating their own tasks. When deciding on particular tasks for different levels of students, teachers should refer to the assessment criteria to ensure that students are given every opportunity to demonstrate their linguistic capability.

The work of all candidates will be marked using the assessment criteria listed in this specification.

# Description of coursework task types and sample coursework activities

#### Task type 1 – lists, labelling, short messages, gap-fill tasks, short letters

For G/F students, a typical unit might contain some lists, a key to a map or plan, a labelled photo, diagram or graph, a completed form or questionnaire, captions for a poster, filled gaps in a model letter, answers to short stimulus messages. Different types of task generate different types of language and a variety of tasks will therefore allow students to show a wider range of language skills and will be more interesting for them.

# Task type 2-longer letters, articles, descriptions, accounts which give students the<br/>opportunity to use different tenses and to express opinions

For a wide range of students a mix of letters, narrative accounts, and descriptive writing would be appropriate, and levels will be differentiated by outcome.

# Task type 3 – extended writing tasks giving students the opportunity to express ideas, justify points of view ands to research their own interests

For the most able candidates, where each unit may contain just one extended piece of writing, it will be particularly important to ensure a mix of tasks. One piece might be narrative, with comment and opinion on the events related; one might be more discursive, such as an article on a topical issue such as environment or health; another could be a letter, or a film or book review.

Selecting passages from literary works as stimulus material is usually only suitable for a minority of students at the higher end of the ability range. However, literary texts can provide a stimulating source for these students and can be a very useful bridge to the kind of work required at AS or A level.

Target grades	At home and abroad	Education, training and employment		
	Things to see and do Life in the town, countryside, seaside Weather and climate Travel, transport and directions Holidays, tourist information and accommodation Services and shopping abroad Customs, everyday life and traditions	School life and routine Different types of jobs Job adverts, applications and interviews Future plans and work experience		
G, F, E	<ul> <li>Type 1:</li> <li>List or labelled plan of local attractions for a foreign visitor</li> <li>Postcard about home town in response to one from penfriend</li> <li>Letter booking accommodation (gap- filling or substitution)</li> <li>List of holiday luggage requirements</li> <li>Captions for pictures of national events</li> <li>Holiday postcard</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Type 1:</li> <li>Reply to a friend's letter about school day/favourite subjects (adapting a model letter)</li> <li>Gap-filling letter applying for a holiday job</li> <li>Send fax to company stating that your work experience start date will change</li> <li>Postcard describing holiday job</li> <li>E-mail a list of facilities of workplace or school to a visitor from abroad</li> </ul>		
D,C	<ul> <li>Type 2:</li> <li>Description of a local attraction</li> <li>Letter to exchange school stating facilities (sport, cultural, amusements) in your area</li> <li>Survey and report of views about local facilities</li> <li>Letter/fax to business contact or penfriend giving or requesting travel information – eg flight numbers, train links, hotel arrangements etc</li> <li>Account of a visit or a trip, based on diary or photos</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Type 2:</li> <li>Poem/song lyrics about school (possibly with visual element)</li> <li>Informal letter outlining plans for the future</li> <li>Letter to prospective employer asking about hours/conditions of work, pay</li> <li>Diary of work experience or a holiday job</li> <li>Letter/fax/E-mail to a company placing an order</li> </ul>		
B,A,A*	<ul> <li>Type 3:</li> <li>Leaflet/brochure about local area for visiting exchange school</li> <li>Description of your town as it was 50 years ago or as you imagine it in 50 years time</li> <li>Complaint letter to hotel or travel company</li> <li>Research into different methods of transport for travel abroad, eg methods of crossing the Channel with evaluations and personal preferences</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Type 3:</li> <li>Survey about school reports, parents' evenings etc with evaluation including own opinion</li> <li>Article giving advice to young people wanting a holiday job</li> <li>Article about advantages and disadvantages of work experience</li> <li>An account of a work-shadowing exercise for a magazine</li> <li>Job application letter in response to advert</li> </ul>		

House, home and daily routine	Media, entertainment and youth culture	Social activities, fitness and health	
Types of home, rooms, furniture, and garden Information about self, family and friends Helping around the house Food and drink	Sport, fashion and entertainment Famous personalities The media Current affairs, social and environmental issues	Free time (evenings, weekends) Special occasions Hobbies, interests and sports Shopping and money matters Meeting people Exercise Accidents, injuries and common ailments Health issues (healthy eating, drugs)	
<ul> <li>Type 1:</li> <li>Plan or photo of house or room – labelled</li> <li>Shopping list of food or drink for a picnic</li> <li>Fill in form to find a pen- friend</li> <li>Simple family tree</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Type 1:</li> <li>Captions for a poster on a topical, social or environmental issue</li> <li>Fact sheet about a well-known person (artist, sports person, actor, musician)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Type 1:</li> <li>Survey on spare-time activities</li> <li>List of what you spend pocket money on</li> <li>Labelled plan of a shopping centre</li> <li>Captions about health and fitness for a poster</li> <li>A simplified fitness-</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Type 2:</li> <li>An account for foreign language school magazine of typical day in your life</li> <li>Writing up a favourite recipe</li> <li>An account of a visit to a restaurant or a special celebration meal</li> <li>Informal letter introducing yourself or family to a new penfriend or to a new business contact</li> <li>Description of a member of the family or friend</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Type 2:</li> <li>Magazine interview with personality</li> <li>Informal letter describing favourite types of film or television programme</li> <li>Summary of a sports event</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>maintenance plan</li> <li>Type 2:</li> <li>An account of a visit to an event eg concert, theatre trip, football match, motor show etc</li> <li>Diary recording free-time activities/typical weekend</li> <li>Response to a wedding invitation</li> <li>Informal letter/E-mail to a penfriend giving information about an illness/ailment that you have</li> <li>Survey and report of views on a health issue (eg smoking)</li> <li>Magazine interview with a fitness adviser or former smoker</li> </ul>	

House, home and daily routine		Media, entertainment and youth culture		Social activities, fitness and health	
Туре	e 3:	Ту	pe 3:	Ту	ре 3:
÷ 2 t	Discursive writing on division of household chores Article on differences between homes/housing in the United Kingdom and a trarget-language country	÷ ÷	Review of book/film, TV programme Response to 'agony column' type letter on disagreements with parents about pocket-money, clothes, friends etc Letter to a newspaper expressing concern over a topical, social or environmental issue Detailed article about a person who has been in the news in the last six months	÷ ÷ ;	Letter of complaint to organisers of concert or other event (too dear, badly organised, lack of safety precautions etc) Report/survey with opinions about shopping issues (eg – advantages and disadvantages of Internet or supermarket shopping Describe an accident that you have witnessed or experienced Discursive writing on a health issue

#### **Drafting arrangements**

Teachers should discuss the tasks to be completed with candidates and may suggest ways in which the stimulus material could be exploited. Students have an opportunity\* to produce a first draft of all work submitted and teachers can make general comments on performance on the standard coursework draft feedback sheet, eg indicate an area that would benefit from greater detail, highlight areas that need attention, such as agreements, verbs, spelling (a coursework feedback form appears in *Appendix 4*). They may not, however, correct specific points of language or grammar. The feedback sheets encourage students to develop skills in identifying language errors for themselves without specific teacher references. Teachers **must not** write on the student's first draft and should submit completed coursework draft feedback sheets for the first draft of each piece of work submitted. First drafts do not have to be submitted for work not undertaken in controlled conditions but should be available to moderators on request.

\*The undertaking of a draft is not a requirement of this specification.

#### Summary of controlled conditions

Controlled conditions provide an effective way of verifying coursework authenticity and are defined as follows:

- + at least a third of the total coursework for each candidate must be produced under controlled conditions, but teachers may increase this proportion at their discretion
- + work must be done in the classroom and supervised by the teacher
- candidates may only have access to the task stimulus and a dictionary (which may be online)
- ÷ all stimulus material other than a dictionary must be submitted in the candidate's folder
- ideally, work should be completed in a single session but if this is not possible, the teacher must store it securely until the next controlled conditions session
- + a record must be kept of when and under what conditions the work in the candidate's folder was completed. A coursework frontsheet will be provided for this purpose
- candidates will know the coursework task in advance of the controlled conditions and may prepare a first draft in advance. First drafts should not be referred to under controlled conditions and must be submitted in the candidate's folder of work
- ÷ teachers will be required to authenticate the coursework as the candidate's own work.

#### Submission

The coursework must be submitted by the end of the first week in May in the year of the examination. Centres may either spread the work over a two-year course or arrange for its completion in the final year of the course. However, all the work will be assessed to the same standard against the same criteria. Please refer to *Appendix 4* for further guidance on submission procedures.

In order to assess work accurately and measure the degree of candidates' language manipulation and creativity, centres are required to make a formal declaration of source and support materials used (including traditional and online dictionaries). They must also submit a copy of centredevised worksheets, website pages and copies of relevant pages from course books used with each sample or group of samples submitted. The coursework submission will be marked by the teacher-examiner and sent to Edexcel's moderators for moderation on a sampling basis. In accordance with the Mandatory Code of Practice, centres must standardise assessment across different teachers and teaching groups to ensure that all candidates in a centre have been judged against the same standards. Teachers must also ensure that the tasks used across different teaching groups and languages (where possible) are comparable.

Detailed instructions on standardisation of marking and moderation procedures appear in *Appendix 4*.

#### Assessment guidance

There are three assessment grids for the writing coursework:

- + Communication and content
- + Knowledge and application of language
- + Accuracy of language.

Teachers should assess each unit of work **globally** and award a maximum of ten marks for Communication and content, a maximum of five marks for Knowledge and application of language and a maximum of five marks for the Accuracy of language. The three sets of marks for each unit should then be entered on the coursework frontsheet, and the nine marks for the three units aggregated to give a final total out of 60.

## **Entry tiers**

Candidates for this qualification must be entered for one of two tiers for **each** of the four language papers. However, entry of candidates for the writing coursework option is not tiered. The Higher Tier is targeted at grades A\* to D, and the Foundation Tier is targeted at grades C to G. Mechanisms are in place to combine a student's achievement in papers of different tiers and so produce an overall grade. Students should be entered at the tier most appropriate to their level of competence. A safety net is provided for candidates entered for the Higher Tier in this specification, and an allowed grade E can be awarded on the Higher Tier. Candidates failing to achieve grade E on a Higher Tier paper will be reported as unclassified on that paper. When registering students for MFL GCSE examinations, Edexcel does **not** require centres to specify the tier of entry.

# Relationship of assessment objectives to scheme of assessment

The table on page 2 (*Summary of specification content and scheme of assessment*) shows the overall weightings of the assessment objectives in relation to each of the examination components.

### Internal assessment moderation procedures

To assist centres and to provide all the information required within this document, detailed internal assessment moderation procedures are given in *Appendix 4*. If it proves necessary to amend these details in any way in the future, centres will receive separate notification.

## Awarding, reporting and equivalence

The grading, awarding and certification of this specification will comply with the requirements of the GCSE and GCE A/AS Code of Practice for courses starting in September 2001, which is published by QCA. Qualifications will be graded and certificated on an eight-grade scale from A\* to G. The full qualification may be taken more than once. GCSEs have broad equivalence to General National Vocational Qualifications in the following terms:

- ÷ two GCSEs at grade D to G and two GCSEs at grade A\* to C are equivalent to one threeunit GNVQ at Foundation and Intermediate level respectively
- four GCSEs at grade D to G and four GCSEs at grade A\* to C are equivalent to one six-unit GNVQ at Foundation and Intermediate level respectively.

## Language of assessment

Assessment of this specification will be through non-verbal or target-language responses although up to 20% of the tasks set in listening and reading papers will require responses in English. This is necessary in contexts which include simple authentic interpreting situations (eg – your friend is unable to read Italian and wants to know...). Assessment materials will be published in the target language with some English support provided where appropriate (eg contextualisation within speaking and writing papers). All questions in the Foundation Tier writing paper will have rubrics printed in English. This will also apply to the first question in the Higher Tier writing paper.

### Students with particular requirements

Regulations and guidance relating to students with special requirements are published annually by the Joint Council for General Qualifications and are circulated to examinations officers. Further copies of guidance documentation may be obtained from the following address or by telephoning 0870 240 9800.

Edexcel will assess whether or not special consideration or concession can be made for students with particular requirements. Requests should be addressed to:

Special Requirements Edexcel Foundation Stewart House 32 Russell Square London WC1B 5DN

## Private candidates

This specification is available to private candidates. Please contact the Edexcel Customer Response Centre on 0870 240 9800 for further details.

# **Grade descriptions**

Grade descriptions are provided to give a general indication of the standards of achievement likely to have been shown by candidates awarded particular grades. The descriptions must be interpreted in relation to the content specified by the specification; they are not designed to define that content. The grade awarded will depend in practice upon the extent to which the candidate has met the assessment objectives overall. Shortcomings in some aspects of the assessment may be balanced by better performances in others.

Grade	F	

Listening	Candidates identify and note main points and extract some details from simple language spoken clearly at near normal speed.
Speaking	Candidates take part in simple conversations showing some ability to substitute words and phrases. Their pronunciation is generally accurate, and although there may be grammatical inaccuracies, the main points are communicated.
Reading	Candidates identify main points and extract some information from short, simple texts. They use context to work out the meaning of words.
Writing	Candidates write short sentences, and respond to written texts by substituting words and set phrases. Although there may be mistakes in spelling and grammar, the main points are communicated.
Grade C	
Listening	Candidates identify and note main points and extract details and points of view from language spoken at normal speed. The spoken texts include past and future events. They are drawn from a variety of topics that include familiar language in unfamiliar contexts.
Speaking	Candidates develop conversations and simple discussions which include past, present and future events, involving the use of different tenses. They express personal opinions and show an ability to deal with some unpredictable elements. Although there may be some errors, they convey a clear message, and their pronunciation and intonation are generally accurate.
Reading	Candidates identify and extract details and points of view from authentic and simulated texts, drawn from a variety of topics and which include past, present and future events. They show an ability to understand unfamiliar language.
Writing	Candidates express personal opinions and write about a variety of topics, both factually and imaginatively, including past, present and future events and involving the use of different tenses. They use an appropriate register. The style is basic but despite some errors the writing conveys a clear message.

#### Grade A

- Listening Candidates understand gist and identify main points and detail in a variety of types of authentic spoken language. They recognise points of view, attitudes and emotions and are able to draw conclusions.
- Speaking Candidates initiate and develop conversations and discussions, and narrate events. They express and justify ideas and points of view, and produce longer sequences of speech using a variety of vocabulary, structures and verb tenses. They speak confidently, with good pronunciation and intonation. The message is clear although there may still be some errors, especially when candidates use more complex structures.
- Reading Candidates understand gist and identify main points and detail in a variety of types of authentic texts. They recognise points of view, attitudes and emotions and are able to draw conclusions. They show an ability to understand unfamiliar language and to extract meaning from more complex language.
- Writing Candidates give information and narrate events both factually and imaginatively. They express and justify ideas and points of view. They produce longer sequences using a range of vocabulary, structure and verb tenses. Their spelling and grammar are generally accurate, and the style is appropriate to the purpose.

# Assessment criteria

Assessment criteria are designed to reward learners at GCSE level. It will therefore not be necessary for candidates to perform 'perfectly' in order to attract the highest marks available in each grid. References to 'standard' etc should be interpreted in this context.

**Minor errors** could include the **occasional** omission of accents, incorrect gender, article, slight spelling errors, auxiliary verb or adjectival agreement.

**Major errors** could include the **consistent** mismatching of subject and verb forms, use of inappropriate tenses and/or incorrect vocabulary.

## Speaking

Marks for rôle-play performances are awarded positively on a scale of 1-10 using the following assessment grids. The mark awarded reflects the extent to which the task as a whole has been successfully communicated and completed. To determine if a candidate should gain the upper or lower number of marks in the box which best describes the performance, it is important to refer to the boxes above and below. If the candidate's performance borders more on the performance of the box below than the box above, then the lower mark is allocated. On certain occasions, a candidate performance may require a 'best fit' mark.

Rôle-play A	Communication and content
9-10	Conveys all information required Interacts extremely well No prompting necessary
7-8	Conveys most information required (At least three prescribed tasks) Little or no prompting necessary
5-6	Conveys half the required information (At least two prescribed tasks) Little prompting necessary
3-4	Conveys less than half the required information (At least one prescribed task) Some prompting necessary
1-2	One prescribed task completed satisfactorily Extremely hesitant, reliant on prompting
0	No effective communication

Rôle-play B	Communication and content
9-10	Conveys all information required Deals with unpredictable element with success Interacts well No prompting necessary (takes the initiative)
7-8	Conveys most of the information required One element with partial success Little hesitation Little or no prompting necessary
5-6	Conveys most essential information One element omitted or unsuccessful A degree of hesitation
3-4	Conveys some information Does not attempt some of the tasks Some prompting necessary
1-2	Conveys only one relevant piece of information Extremely hesitant Reliant on prompting
0	No effective communication

Rôle-play C	Communication and content
9-10	All prescribed elements conveyed without ambiguity and without prompting from the teacher-examiner. Takes the initiative and expands. Deals with both unpredictable elements without difficulty. Very little or no hesitation.
7-8	Conveys all predictable information required and attempts unpredictable with partial success (or) conveys both unpredictable elements and conveys most of the predictable information required. Produces extended replies. Minimal hesitation evident.
5-6	One element omitted or whole rôle-play attempted, but not successfully. A degree of hesitation evident but not unduly reliant on the teacher- examiner. Some significant language error which impedes communication to some extent. Unable to deal with unpredictable elements.
3-4	Conveys some of the prescribed elements without ambiguity. Hesitant and reliant to some extent on the teacher-examiner. Does not attempt some of the tasks.
1-2	Conveys only one element without ambiguity. Extremely hesitant. Communication seriously impaired through poor pronunciation and language errors.
0	No effective communication.

#### Assessment criteria – Conversation

Students can gain up to ten marks in **each** of the following:

#### **Communication and content**

#### **Application of language**

#### Accuracy.

Marks are not allocated separately for each topic but are awarded for performance throughout the full conversation (both topics). Please refer to the following assessment grid.

#### Conversation

	Communication and content		Application of language		Accuracy
9-10	Responds very well indeed to a wide range of question- types. Extremely responsive, expands and develops relevant interchange on own initiative. Clearly expresses wide range of opinions and attitudes. Frequently justifies opinions.	9-10	Deploys a very wide range of structures and lexis as appropriate to questions. Use of some more complex lexical items. Very competent use of present, past and future modes.	9-10	Very accurate indeed although isolated, usually insignificant errors may occur. Pronunciation and intonation of a consistently good standard.
7-8	Responds well to a wide range of question types although occasional prompting required. Takes initiative/develops more elaborate responses. Conveys opinions without undue difficulty.	7-8	Generally at ease with subordination. Uses reasonably wide and mostly appropriate range of structure and lexis. Unambiguous use of tenses other than the present.	7-8	Generally accurate in straightforward language but errors made (possibly basic) in more complex language. Pronunciation and intonation generally good.
5-6	Responds well to familiar, straightforward questions but experiences problems with more complex question forms. Conveys simple opinions. Deals with open questions but rarely expands. Dependent on teacher-examiner's structured language.	5-6	Offers some examples of subordination. Uses tenses without ambiguity. Mostly predictable lexical items deployed.	5-6	Generally accurate in simple, basic language despite a fair number of significant errors. Less accurate in more unfamiliar language situations. Some inconsistency. Pronunciation generally accurate.
3-4	Responses restricted to very straightforward questions. Answers invariably limited, short and very hesitant. Very dependent on teacher examiners' language and prompts. Opinions limited to basic likes and dislikes.	3-4	Predominantly uses short main clause structures. Little or no awareness of tense concept other than the present. Inappropriate lexical items may impede communication at times. Deploys a very limited/repetitive range of structure and lexis.	3-4	Communicates main points despite high incidence of errors. Some 'pre-learnt' stereotypes correct but frequent and basic inaccuracy in manipulated language. Pronunciation inconsistent.
1-2	Produces minimal responses (mainly one-word replies or very short phrases) Limited comprehension of basic questions and limited response. Totally reliant on teacher-examiner's structured questions.	1-2	Operates only in most basic structures. Rarely offers complete sentences. Resorts frequently to non-target language.	1-2	Consistently inaccurate language. Pronunciation impedes basic communication most of the time. Offers only isolated examples of accurate language. Pronunciation very poor.
0	No rewardable communication/content	0	No rewardable language	0	No rewardable language

## Writing

#### **Question 1 (Foundation)**

#### Marked for communication only.

Marks are awarded positively for each item/point communicated in such a way that a sympathetic native speaker can readily understand it. No marks are allocated for accuracy beyond that required for effective communication.

### **Question 2 (Foundation)**

Co	ommunication and content
5	All phrases are completed, perhaps with minor ambiguity or omission.
4	Most of the phrases are completed. There may be some ambiguity or omission.
3	About half of the required phrases are completed, though with some ambiguity.
2	One or two phrases are completed but with some ambiguity.
1	There is little meaningful communication.
0	No effective communication.
Kı	nowledge and application of language
5	Appropriate vocabulary. Correct syntax. Accurate spelling.
4	Appropriate vocabulary. Correct syntax. All verbs correctly spelt. Spelling errors do not affect communication.
3	Vocabulary mostly appropriate. Most verbs correctly spelt. Syntax, genders and agreements may be inaccurate.
2	Some appropriate vocabulary. At least one verb correctly spelt. Inaccuracy impedes communication.
1	Some appropriate vocabulary. No verbs correctly spelt. Isolated examples of correctly spelt words.

- 0 No language worthy of credit.
- NB: Words and phrases copied from the stimulus without appropriate modification cannot be assessed marks.

## Question 3 (Foundation)

Marks are awarded globally across each task using the criteria below:

Co	ommunication and content			
5	The task is completed, perhaps with minor ambiguity or omission.			
4	Most of the task is completed. There may be some ambiguity or omission.			
3	About half of the task is completed, though with some ambiguity.			
2	One or two elements of the task are completed but with some ambiguity.			
1	There is little meaningful communication – single lexical items only.			
0	No effective communication.			
Kı	Knowledge and application of language			
5	Appropriate vocabulary for the task. Correct syntax in simple phrases. Generally accurate with some lapses.			
4	Basic errors evident but these rarely interfere with communication. Able to construct simple sentences with some lapses. Vocabulary and structures generally appropriate for the task. Some weakness in spellings, gender and verbs.			
3	Inaccurate language sometimes impedes communication. Shows some ability to construct simple sentences. Vocabulary and structures adequate to the task. Genders, spellings, verb forms inconsistent.			
2	Much inaccuracy which impedes communication. Some examples of simple sentence structure – pre-learned phrases. Spellings and genders are often inaccurate, or weak. Very limited verb forms. Vocabulary and structures only just adequate for the task.			
1	Frequent errors which prevent communication, only isolated examples of accurate recognisable language – odd words, phrases. No awareness of structure.			
0	No language worthy of credit.			

### **Overlap questions (Foundation: Question 4/Higher – Question 1)**

Marks are awarded for **Communication and content** as well as for **Knowledge and application** and **Accuracy of language.** Please refer to the following grids:

Com	Communication and content			
9-10	Task clearly understood and responds fully to stimulus. Ability to narrate, expand, give full descriptions and express opinions as appropriate to task. Time sequence/verb tenses clear with no ambiguity. Piece clearly linked as a whole and relevant to set task. Coherent, pleasant to read.			
7-8	Responds fully to all or nearly all of the task although there may be some minor omissions. Task clearly understood. Shows ability to go beyond a minimal response, and provides evidence of description and opinion as appropriate to the task. Time sequence/verb tenses generally sound with occasional lapses. Coherent with some lapses. Fairly clear, and reasonable attempt to link the piece into a whole. May be rather pedestrian or alternatively somewhat over ambitious.			
5-6	Majority of task completed and relevant information conveyed although there may be some omissions. There may be some misunderstanding of the question leading to some irrelevance. Evidence of ability to go beyond a minimal response, beginning to expand ideas and express opinions etc, suitable for factual/imaginative tasks. Appropriate use of verb tenses with some lapses, sometimes leading to ambiguity. Comprehensible overall with some attempt at linking piece into a whole. Ambiguous in places, especially if more ambitious language is attempted.			
3-4	Main points of question completed but some of the task may have been misunderstood. Some relevant information conveyed but there may be major omissions and/or irrelevance, repetition. Level of response minimal with no evidence of description or opinions, etc appropriate to task. Some attempt at verb tenses but inconsistent and unreliable/insecure, leading to ambiguity. Just about comprehensible overall. Not easy to read.			
1-2	Little relevant information conveyed. Much ambiguity and omission. Task generally misunderstood. Substantial degree of irrelevance and incoherence. Time indications/verb tenses required by the task are absent or unreliable. Except for isolated items would not be comprehensible to a native speaker.			
0	No relevant communication.			

#### Knowledge and application of language

- 5 Vocabulary and structures comfortably equal to the task. Variety of vocabulary, idiom and structures appropriate for narrative and description, eg expressing and justifying opinions, ideas and points of view and to avoid repetition. Confident use of more complex structures such as pronouns, negatives, superlatives, range of tenses, although there may be the occasional lapse. Clear ability to manipulate language to suit purpose.
- 4 Evidence of a range of vocabulary and structures appropriate to narrative and description, eg: expressing opinions, justifying ideas and points of view. Some attempt to vary sentences by using more ambitious structures: subordinate clauses, pronouns, adverbial or other phrases, range of tenses, although these are unlikely to be wholly successful. Shows ability to manipulate language to suit purpose, albeit with mistakes.
- 3 Vocabulary and structures adequate to task. Language appropriate for purpose; there may be occasional mother-tongue influence, which does not impede communication. Style basic, correct syntax when using simple, short sentences. Some longer sentences where syntax not always correct. Fairly correct use of standard idiom. Attempts enhancement of fact with adjectives and adverbial phrases with (some) success. Attempts to use subordinate clauses/simple linking. Evidence of correct formation of tenses with some lapses. Although there will be pre-learned, set phrases and attempts to manipulate the language, this may be only partially successful.
- 2 Limited vocabulary and structures, only just adequate to the task. Language basic and sometimes inappropriate to the task, some mother-tongue influence and words in nontarget language. Sentences simple and usually short, syntactically more or less correct, occasional use of standard idiom. Some evidence of correct formation and use of verbs/tenses though frequent lapses. Pre-learned, set phrases predominate and there will be no evidence of any ability to manipulate the language. Some attempt at enhancement of fact with adjectives or adverbial phrases, though these are likely to be only partially successful. There may be some simple subordination.
- 1 Very limited language. Frequent use of mother-tongue or non-target language words greatly restricts communication. Language very basic and frequently inappropriate. Little understanding of language structures, eg the formation and use of tenses. There may be the occasional almost correct phrase or short sentence but this will be pre-learned or stereotyped.
- 0 No language worthy of credit.

Acc	Accuracy of language	
5	High level of accuracy though not necessarily faultless. Spellings, genders, agreements, verb forms generally mastered with the odd slip. Secure when using more complex language but again there may be minor errors.	
4	Generally accurate in straightforward language, most verb forms correct, secure in genders and agreements but the odd lapse. Spellings mostly accurate. Accuracy can be more variable when more complex structures are attempted.	
3	Fairly accurate in simple language. Some lapses in spellings and genders and verb endings. Inconsistency in verb forms but more correct than incorrect. Spellings of common words generally accurate. About half of what is written should be free of major errors, inaccuracy increases if more complex structures attempted. Despite errors the message is communicated.	
2	Many basic errors but main points communicated. Some correct phrases but frequent misspellings, inaccurate genders, incorrect verb endings.	
1	Frequent basic errors and inaccuracies prevent communication. Isolated examples of correct language. Spellings and genders very weak. Little or no evidence of correct verb formation.	
0	No language worthy of credit.	

### **Question 2 (Higher Tier)**

This question attracts marks for **Communication and content**, **Knowledge and application of language** and **Accuracy**. Please see the following grids:

Communication and content	
13-15	Task clearly understood and responds fully to stimulus. Ability to narrate, expand, give full descriptions and express opinions as appropriate to task. Time sequence/verb tenses clear with no ambiguity. Piece clearly linked as a whole and relevant to set task. Coherent, pleasant to read.
10-12	Responds fully to all or nearly all of the task although there may be some minor omissions. Task clearly understood. Shows ability to go beyond a minimal response, and provides evidence of description and opinion as appropriate to the task. Time sequence/verb tenses generally sound with occasional lapses. Coherent with some lapses. Fairly clear, and reasonable attempt to link the piece into a whole. May be rather pedestrian or alternatively, somewhat over ambitious.
7-9	Majority of task completed and relevant information conveyed, although there may be some omissions. There may be some misunderstanding of the question leading to some irrelevance. Evidence of ability to go beyond a minimal response, beginning to expand ideas and express opinions, etc suitable for factual/imaginative tasks. Appropriate use of verb tenses with some lapses, sometimes leading to ambiguity. Comprehensible overall with some attempt at linking piece into a whole. Ambiguous in places, especially if more ambitious language is attempted.
4-6	Main points of question completed but some of the task may have been misunderstood. Some relevant information conveyed but there may be major omissions and/or irrelevance, repetition. Level of response minimal with no evidence of description or opinions, etc appropriate to task. Some attempt at verb tenses but inconsistent and unreliable/insecure, leading to ambiguity. Just about comprehensible overall. Not easy to read.
1-3	Little relevant information conveyed. Much ambiguity and omission. Task generally misunderstood. Substantial degree of irrelevance and incoherence. Time indications/verb tenses required by the task are absent or unreliable. Except for isolated items would not be comprehensible to a native speaker.
0	No relevant communication.

#### Knowledge and application of language

- 9-10 Vocabulary and structures comfortably equal to the task. Variety of vocabulary, idiom and structures appropriate for narrative and description, eg expressing and justifying opinions, ideas and points of view and to avoid repetition. Confident use of more complex structures such as pronouns, negatives, superlatives, range of tenses, although there may be the occasional lapse. Clear ability to manipulate language to suit purpose.
- 7-8 Evidence of a range of vocabulary and structures appropriate to narrative and description, eg expressing opinions, justifying ideas and points of view. Some attempt to vary sentences by using more ambitious structures: subordinate clauses, pronouns, adverbial or other phrases, range of tenses, although these are unlikely to be wholly successful. Shows ability to manipulate language to suit purpose, albeit with mistakes.
- 5-6 Vocabulary and structures adequate to task. Language appropriate for purpose; there may be occasional mother-tongue influence, which does not impede communication. Style basic, correct syntax when using simple, short sentences. Some longer sentences where syntax not always correct. Fairly correct use of standard idiom. Attempts enhancement of fact with adjectives and adverbial phrases with (some) success. Attempts to use subordinate clauses/simple linking. Evidence of correct formation of tenses with some lapses. Although there will be pre-learned, set phrases and attempts to manipulate the language, this may be only partially successful.
- 3-4 Limited vocabulary and structures, only just adequate to the task. Language basic and sometimes inappropriate to the task, some mother-tongue influence and words in non-target language. Sentences simple and usually short, syntactically more or less correct, occasional use of standard idiom. Some evidence of correct formation and use of verbs/tenses though frequent lapses. Pre-learned, set phrases predominate and there will be no evidence of any ability to manipulate the language. Some attempt at enhancement of fact with adjectives or adverbial phrases, though these are likely to be only partially successful. There may be some simple subordination.
- 1-2 Very limited language. Frequent use of mother-tongue or non-target language words greatly restrict communication. Language very basic and frequently inappropriate. Little understanding of language structures eg the formation and use of tenses. There may be the occasional almost correct phrase or short sentence but this will be pre-learned or stereotyped.
- 0 No language worthy of credit.

Acc	Accuracy of language		
5	High level of accuracy though not necessarily faultless. Spellings, genders, agreements, verb forms generally mastered with the odd slip. Secure when using more complex language but again there may be minor errors.		
4	Generally accurate in straightforward language, most verb forms correct, secure in genders and agreements but the odd lapse. Spellings mostly accurate. Accuracy can be more variable when more complex structures are attempted.		
3	Fairly accurate in simple language. Some lapses in spellings and genders and verb endings. Inconsistency in verb forms but more correct than incorrect. Spellings of common words generally accurate. About half of what is written should be free of major errors, inaccuracy increases if attempts more complex structures. Despite error the message is communicated.		
2	Many basic errors but main points communicated. Some correct phrases but frequent misspellings, inaccurate genders, and incorrect verb endings.		
1	Frequent basic errors and inaccuracies prevent communication. Isolated examples of correct language. Spellings and genders very weak. Little or no evidence of correct verb formation.		
0	No language worthy of credit.		

### Writing – Coursework

Coursework should be marked globally across each complete unit. **Each unit** can attract up to 10 marks for **Communication and content**, 5 marks for **Knowledge and application** of language and 5 marks for **Accuracy.** Please refer to the following grids:

Com	Communication and content	
9-10	Unit task or tasks clearly understood and responds fully to stimulus. Ability to narrate, expand, give full descriptions and express opinions as appropriate to task. Time sequence/verb tenses clear with no ambiguity. Piece clearly linked into a whole and relevant to the task. Coherent, pleasant to read. Reference materials used well. Combines clear evidence of linked research with natural, creative (and possibly imaginative) writing.	
7-8	Responds fully to all or nearly all of the unit task(s) although there may be minor omissions. Task clearly understood. Shows ability to go beyond a minimal response, and provides evidence of description and opinion as appropriate to the task. Time sequence/verb tenses generally sound with occasional lapses. Coherent with some lapses. Fairly clear, and reasonable attempt to link the piece into a whole. May be rather pedestrian or alternatively somewhat over ambitious. Effective use of reference materials and clear evidence of linked research. Creative (and possibly imaginative) writing well attempted where appropriate.	
5-6	Majority of the unit task(s) completed and relevant information conveyed although there may be some omissions. There may be some misunderstanding of the stimulus leading to some irrelevance. Evidence of ability to go beyond a minimal response, beginning to expand ideas and express opinions etc, suitable for factual/imaginative tasks. Appropriate use of verb tenses with some lapses, sometimes leading to ambiguity. Comprehensible overall with some attempt at linking piece into a whole. Ambiguous in places, especially if more ambitious language is attempted. Effective use of reference materials and some evidence of linked research. Creative (and possibly imaginative) writing attempted where appropriate.	
3-4	Key information given but some of the stimulus for the unit task(s) may have been misunderstood. Some relevant information conveyed but there may be major omissions and/or irrelevance, repetition. Level of response minimal with no evidence of description or opinions etc appropriate to task. Some attempt at verb tenses but inconsistent and unreliable/insecure leading to ambiguity. Just about comprehensible overall with moments of ambiguity. Over-reliant on the stimulus reference materials. Little evidence of linked research. Not easy to read.	
1-2	Little relevant information conveyed. Much ambiguity and omission. Unit task(s) generally misunderstood. Substantial degree of irrelevance and incoherence. Time indications/verb tenses required by the task are absent or unreliable. Except for isolated items would not be comprehensible to a native speaker. Excessive or inappropriate 'lifting' from the stimulus or reference materials. No evidence of linked research.	
0	No relevant communication.	

#### Knowledge and application of language

- 5 Vocabulary and structures comfortably equal to the tasks set within the unit. Variety of vocabulary, idiom and structures appropriate for narrative and description, eg expressing and justifying opinions, ideas and points of view and to avoid repetition. Confident use of more complex structures such as pronouns, negatives, superlatives, range of tenses, although there may be the occasional lapse. Manipulates source material successfully and appropriately.
- 4 Evidence of a range of vocabulary and structures appropriate to narrative and description, eg expressing opinions, justifying ideas and points of view. Some attempt to vary sentences by using more ambitious structures, eg subordinate clauses, pronouns, adverbial or other phrases, range of tenses, although these are unlikely to be wholly successful. Shows ability to manipulate language and source material/stimulus to suit purpose, albeit with mistakes.
- 3 Vocabulary and structures adequate to tasks set within the unit. Language appropriate for purpose, although there may be occasional mother-tongue influences which do not impede communication. Style basic, correct syntax when using simple short sentences. Some longer sentences where syntax not always correct. Fairly correct use of standard idiom. Attempts enhancement of fact with adjectives and adverbial phrases with (some) success. Attempts to use subordinate clauses/simple linking. Evidence of correct formation of tenses, with some lapses. Although there will be pre-learned, set phrases and attempts to manipulate language and source material/stimulus, this may be only partially successful.
- 2 Limited vocabulary and structures, only just adequate to the tasks set within the unit. Language basic and sometimes inappropriate to the task, some mother-tongue influences and words in non-target language. Sentences simple and usually short, syntactically more or less correct, occasional use of standard idiom. Some evidence of correct formation and use of verbs/tenses, though frequent lapses. Pre-learned, set phrases predominate and some incorrect and inappropriate copying of text from the source material/stimulus. Some attempt at enhancement of fact with adjectives or adverbial phrases, though these are likely to be only partially successful. There may be some simple subordination.
- 1 Very limited language. Frequent use of mother-tongue influences or non-target language words greatly restrict communication. Language very basic and frequently inappropriate. Little understanding of language structures, eg the formation and use of tenses. There may be the occasional almost correct phrase or short sentence but this will be pre-learned or 'lifted'. Much incorrect and inappropriate copying of text from the source material/stimulus.
- 0 No language worthy of credit.

Accu	Accuracy of language		
5	High level of accuracy though not necessarily faultless. Spellings, genders, agreements, verb forms generally mastered, with the odd slip. Secure when using more complex language but again there may be minor errors.		
4	Generally accurate in straightforward language, most verb forms correct, secure in genders, agreements but the odd lapse. Spellings mostly accurate. Accuracy can be more variable when more complex structures are attempted.		
3	Fairly accurate in simple language. Some lapses in spellings, genders and verb endings. Inconsistency in verb forms but more correct than incorrect. Spellings of common words generally accurate. About half of what is written should be free of major errors, inaccuracy increases if attempts more complex structures. Despite error the message is communicated.		
2	Many basic errors but main points communicated. Some correct phrases but frequent misspellings, inaccurate genders, incorrect verb endings.		
1	Frequent basic errors and inaccuracies prevent communication. Isolated examples of correct language. Spellings and genders very weak. Little or no evidence of correct verb formation.		
0	No language worthy of credit.		

NB: A higher proportion of marks are specifically allocated to accuracy of language in the written coursework option to reflect the different conditions of assessment.

### **Assessment overview**

The table below provides an overview of assessment across all papers and indicates how new weightings for Knowledge and application of language have been incorporated. The revised GCSE criteria for Modern Foreign Languages require a 40% minimum allocation of the marks within both writing and speaking papers.

Paper/task	Communication and content	Knowledge and application of language	Mark allocation	Total for paper
1F – Foundation	50	_	50	50
1H – Higher	50	_	50	50
2F – Foundation				
Rôle-play A	10	-	10	
Rôle-play B	10	_	10	50
Conversation Topic 1 Conversation Topic 2	10	20*	30	
2H – Higher				
Rôle-play B	10	_	10	50
Rôle-play C	10	_	10	50
Conversation Topic 1				
Conversation Topic 2	10	20*	30	
3 F – Foundation	50	-	50	50
3H – Higher	50	_	50	50
4F – Foundation				
Task 1	10	_	10	
Task 2	5	5	10	50
Task 3	5	5	10	
Task 4	10	10**	20	
4H – Higher				
Task 1	10	10**	20	50
Task 2	15	15**	30	
4C Coursework	10	10**	20	20x 3

\*Includes 10 marks for accuracy

\*\*Includes 5 marks for accuracy

# Learning and teaching requirements for key stages 3 and 4

The specification complements and corresponds to the learning and teaching requirements for key stages 3 and 4 of the national curriculum for England as listed below.

#### Acquiring knowledge and understanding of the target language

Pupils should be taught:

- + the grammar of the target language and its application
- + how to express themselves using a range of vocabulary and structures
- + the principles and interrelationship of sounds and writing in the target language.

#### **Developing language skills**

Pupils should be taught:

- + how to listen carefully for gist and detail
- + correct pronunciation and intonation
- + how to ask and answer questions
- + how to initiate and develop conversations
- + how to vary the target language to suit context, audience and purpose
- + how to adapt language they already know for different contexts
- ÷ strategies for dealing with the unpredictable
- techniques for skimming and for scanning written texts for information including those from ICT-based sources
- how to summarise and report the main points of spoken or written texts, using notes where appropriate
- + how to redraft their writing to improve accuracy and presentation, including the use of ICT.

#### **Developing language-learning skills**

Pupils should be taught:

- + techniques for memorising words, phrases and short extracts
- + how to use context and other clues to interpret meaning
- + to use their knowledge of English or another language when learning the target language
- + how to use dictionaries and other reference materials appropriately and effectively
- + how to develop their independence in learning and using the target language.

#### **Developing cultural awareness**

Pupils should be taught about different countries and cultures by:

- + working with authentic materials in the target language, including some ICT-based sources
- + communicating with native speakers
- considering their own culture and comparing it with the cultures of the countries and communities where the target language is spoken
- + considering the experiences and perspectives of people in these countries and communities.

#### **Breadth of study**

During key stages 3 and 4, pupils should be taught the **knowledge**, **skills and understanding** through:

- ÷ communicating in the target language in pairs and groups, and with their teacher
- + using everyday classroom events as an opportunity for spontaneous speech
- + expressing and discussing personal feelings and opinions
- producing and responding to different types of spoken and written language, including texts produced using ICT
- + using a range of resources, including ICT, for accessing and communicating information
- + using the target language creatively and imaginatively
- ÷ listening, reading or viewing for personal interest and enjoyment, as well as for information
- ÷ using the target language for real purposes
- + working in a variety of **contexts**, including: everyday activities, personal and social life, the world around us, the world of work and the international world.

### Key skills

This specification will provide opportunities, as appropriate, to develop the key skills of Information technology, improving own learning and performance, working with others and communication\*.

Examples of such opportunities are signposted throughout the specification. It is important that these opportunities fall naturally into a programme of study, and it may be that not all the examples are appropriate for all programmes. The examples offered may be adapted to suit particular situations, and it will be possible to devise many alternative opportunities and approaches. The development of key skills can enhance teaching and learning strategies and can be a stimulus to new approaches, and increase levels of student involvement.

\*Although learning a modern foreign language will greatly assist in the development of effective communication skills, it is important to stress that evidence for the key skill of communication can only be evidenced in English, Irish or Welsh.

Key skills opportunities are detailed more fully in Appendix 5.

### Social, cultural, spiritual, moral and ethical issues

This specification contributes to an understanding of spiritual, moral, ethical, social and cultural issues.

#### Social and cultural issues

The ethos of any language course is to promote understanding of other cultures in addition to developing language knowledge. Use of the target language in a range of contexts and for different purposes offers natural opportunities for students to consider and express opinions on a variety of social and cultural issues. In particular, the specification identifies the importance of developing student awareness of 'Current affairs, social and environmental issues'.

#### Spiritual, moral and ethical issues

General spiritual, moral and cultural values of society and the individual should also be upheld. The qualification encourages individual learning, pair work and group activities. When working with others, the respect of each member's personal beliefs is very important in building a positive and supportive environment in which to develop and respond. In producing and making notes on their own work and through research, students may address spiritual, moral and cultural implications and impact on others through their written and oral communication.

### **Education for citizenship**

This specification makes a contribution towards coverage of the key stage 4 programme of study for citizenship. Study of a modern foreign language can enable students to understand and appreciate different countries, cultures, people and communities. They will be expected to learn about the customs, everyday life and traditions of the countries or communities where the target language is spoken.

This affords students an opportunity to consider themselves as world citizens as well as citizens of the United Kingdom and Europe.

### Information and communication technology

Information and communication technology can play a vital role in supporting and stimulating modern foreign language learning. As the range of available software increases and as access to E-mail and Internet facilities becomes more widespread, it is expected that teachers will integrate ICT activities into the language-learning process. ICT provides an effective means of communication with foreign students and can facilitate independent target-language learning and research.

## Environmental education, health and safety education and the European dimension

This qualification provides opportunities to support awareness of environmental issues, health and safety considerations and European developments consistent with relevant international agreements. This can be in the form of coursework projects or through activities undertaken within the contexts of everyday activities, personal and social life, the world around us, the world of work and the international world which feature in the qualification at both Foundation and Higher Tiers.

### **Textbooks and other teaching resources**

Different publishers are engaged in producing GCSE 2003 textbooks and other learning resources across a range of languages. Edexcel will provide details of key publications and other materials suitable for the new specification. Centres are also advised to contact CILT and other organisations including the following:

ALL (Association for Language Learning) 150 Railway Terrace Rugby Warwickshire CV21 3HN Tel: 01788 546443

CILT (Centre for Information on Language Teaching) 20 Bedfordbury London WC2N 4LB Tel: 020 7379 5110

Grant and Cutler Ltd 55-57 Great Marlborough Street London W1V 2AY Tel: 020 7734 2012

European Schoolbooks Ltd The Runnings Cheltenham GL51 9PQ Tel: 01242 245252

CTI Centre for Modern Languages School of European Languages and Cultures University of Hull Cottingham Road Hull HU6 7RH (this is an information and research

HU6 7RH (this is an information and research centre for IT and modern languages. It publishes a software guide, a journal (RECALL), and a RECALL newsletter)

Accademia Italiana Bookshop by Messagerie 7 Cecil Court Charing Cross Road London WC2N 4EZ Tel: 020 7240 1634

Italian Cultural Institute 39 Belgrave Square London SW1X 8NX Tel: 020 7235 1461

Channel 4 – Schools PO Box 100 Warwick CV34 6TZ Tel: 01926 436 444 BBC Education BBC Information PO Box 1116 Belfast BT2 7AJ Tel: 08700 100 222

Authentik 27 West Land Square Dublin 2 Tel: 0800 387 027 (Youth-orientated magazines and audio support etc)

### **Useful Internet site addresses**

<u>linguanet.org.uk/websites/websites.htm</u> Site maintained by CILT, provides links to a variety of sites for Italian and other languages

educationunlimited.co.uk/netclass/schools/modernlanguages/0,5607,79833,00.html

This is a site hosted by *The Guardian* and *The Observer* and provides useful exercises and links for Italian and other languages.

<u>quia.com/index.html</u> American site with interactive, mainly mnemonic exercises designed by teachers in many languages. It provides templates for designing your own exercises.

bbc.co.uk/education/languages/gcsebitesize

channel4.com/schools

### **Examiners' comments and mark schemes**

Examiners' comments and mark schemes will be issued to centres for each language after each examination session. Additional copies may be obtained from Edexcel Publications.

### Support and training

### Training

A programme of INSET courses covering various aspects of the specifications and assessment will be arranged by Edexcel each year on a regional basis. Full details may be obtained from:

INSET Edexcel Foundation Stewart House 32 Russell Square London WC1B 5DN

Tel: 020 7758 5620 Fax: 020 7758 5950 020 7758 5951 (second fax number) E-mail: inset@edexcel.org.uk

### Website

www.edexcel.org.uk

Please visit the Edexcel website, where further information about training and support for all qualifications, including this GCSE, can be found.

The website is regularly updated, and an increasing amount of support material and information will become available through it.

### **Edexcel publications**

Support materials and further copies of this specification can be obtained from:

Edexcel Publications Adamsway Mansfield Notts NG18 4FN

Tel: 01623 467467 Fax: 01623 450481 E-mail: publications@linneydirect.com

The following support materials will be available from spring 2001 onwards:

- + coursework guide (internal assessment)
- + teachers' guide
- + student guide
- + bilingual glossaries.

### E-mail

A special E-mail facility has been set up which is dedicated to providing centres with a modern foreign language advice and information service. Queries can be sent direct to <u>modernlanguages@edexcel.org.uk</u>

### **Regional offices and Customer Response Centre**

Further advice and guidance is available through a national network of regional offices. For general enquiries and for details of your nearest office please call the Edexcel Customer Response Centre on 0870 240 9800.

### Appendices

Appendix 1 – Rubrics	53
Appendix 2 – Linguistic structures	55
Appendix 3 – Minimum core vocabulary	59
Appendix 4 – Procedures for internal assessment	81
Appendix 5 – Key skills	99

### **Appendix 1 – Rubrics**

### **Examination rubrics – Italian**

The key words and phrases used in rubrics across the papers are given below. They may be used either as printed or elements of them may be combined.

#### Instructions

Ascolta	la registrazione/conversazione
Chi	dice che cosa?
Completa	le frasi
Descrivi	
Esempio:	
Esprimi	la tua opinione
Fa	una lista/un riassunto
Guarda	le fotografie
	questa piantina
Immagina	che
Indica	la risposta giusta
Leggi	la lettera
	la cartolina
	l'articolo
Metti	il numero giusto sotto il messaggio
	la lettera giusta accanto al numero
	la lettera accanto alla frase
	il segno nel posto giusto
Nota	due o tre particolari
	queste informazioni
Prendi	degli appunti
Riempi	questa scheda
	ivuoti
Rispondi	alle domande
	alle affermazioni
Scegli	le parole/la parola adatta/le frasi giuste
	un titolo per questi articoli/annunci

Scrivi	un articolo
	una cartolina
	una lettera
	una risposta
	il numero dell'articolo accanto al disegno
	la lettera/il nome della persona guista nel posto indicato
	la parola nell'apposita casella
Spiega	perché
Trova	gli errori

Other words/phrases

Attenzione; ci sono più parole/frasi del necessario

Devi annotare queste informazioni in italiano

### **Appendix 2 – Linguistic structures**

#### **Linguistic structures**

GCSE candidates will be expected to have acquired knowledge and understanding of the grammar of the modern foreign language during their course. In the examination they will be required to apply their knowledge and understanding in tasks appropriate to the tier for which they are entered, drawing from the following lists which are divided into Foundation and Higher Tier.

*The examples in brackets are indicative, not exclusive.* For structures marked (R), only receptive knowledge is required.

#### **Italian (Foundation)**

Nouns:	gender
	singular and plural forms
Articles:	definite and indefinite
	partitive
	definite article + preposition (al, sul, nel, etc)
Adjectives:	agreement
	position
	comparative and superlative
	demonstrative
	indefinite ( <i>tutto,ogni,altro</i> )( <i>qualche</i> – ( R) )
	possessive, short and long forms
	interrogative
	use of <i>di</i> and <i>che</i> after comparatives
Adverbs:	formation
	comparative and superlative
	interrogative
	adverbs of time and place (oggi, domani, qui, qua)
	common adverbial phrases

#### Quantifiers/Intensifiers: (molto)

Quantifiers/Intensifiers. (motto)		
<b>Pronouns</b> :	subject	
	object	
	position and order of pronouns	
	reflexive	
	relative: ( <i>che cui, il quale</i> ) ( <i>quel che/il cui</i> – (R))	
	disjunctive	
	demonstrative	
	indefinite	
	possessive	
	interrogative	
	impersonal use of si (si fanno i compiti)	
	combinations of pronouns and their modifications	
	use of plural adjectives after si (R)	
	position of pronouns with imperatives	
Verbs:	regular and irregular forms of verbs, including reflexive verbs	
	modes of address (tu,Lei)	
	all persons of the verb, singular and plural	
	negative forms	
	interrogative forms	
	impersonal constructions (si dice)	
	tenses: present	
	stare + gerund (R)	
	imperfect	
	future	
	perfect	
	conditional: ( <i>vorrei</i> + <i>mi piacerebbe only</i> )	
	pluperfect (R)	
	imperative: common forms including negative	
	use of infinitives after modal verbs and per	
	use of the infinitive after prepositions	
	use of the past infinitive after dopo	
	passive forms (with essere and venire) (with and are $-(R)$ )	
Subjunctive	present (R)	
	imperfect (R)	
	pluperfect subjunctive (R)	

Prepositions: common, including use of a (*vicino a*) use of di and da with prepositions (*senza di te/lontano da*)
Conjunctions: coordinating and subordinating use of key conjunctions with the subjunctive

Number, quantity and time (*da quando*...)

#### Italian (Higher)

All grammar and structures listed for Foundation plus:

use of ci, ne Pronouns Verbs modal verbs verbs followed by an infinitive (with or without a preposition) dependent infinitives (far vedere) perfect infinitive negative forms interrogative forms impersonal constructions (si dice, si crede) present tenses: perfect (including agreement of past participle) imperfect future conditional future perfect (R) conditional perfect pluperfect past definite Passive voice: alternative forms to the passive subjuntive mood: present, perfect, imperfect (R), pluperfect (R)

uses of subjunctive: as positive and negative imperactive for *Lei* after verbs of wishing, request, opinion, emotion to express possibility/impossibility after impersonal expressions (*è importante/facile/necessario che...*) in hypothetical clauses after *se* 

### Appendix 3 – Minimum core vocabulary

#### Minimum core vocabulary list – Italian

The following vocabulary list is intended to assist teachers in the planning of work in relation to the Programmes of Study. Assessment tasks targeted at grades G - C will be based on this vocabulary list although they may include some unfamiliar vocabulary. Occasional glossing of individual words may occur in the examinations although this will be avoided whenever possible. In addition to the specified vocabulary, students will be expected to have knowledge of numbers, times, days of the week, months etc. Some of the vocabulary in the list is not unique to the topic under which it is listed and may appear under more than one heading.

It is useful for students to have access to this source of vocabulary and a bilingual glossary for Italian can be obtained from Edexcel. It has been produced specially for students and provides English meanings, genders, plurals etc and contain vocabulary lists grouped under the five Edexcel main topic areas as well as alphabetically. They will also contain vocabulary appropriate for activities targeted at grades  $C - A^*$ .

#### At home and abroad

a bordo a destra a sinistra abitante abitare accettazione (f.) accoglienza accogliere accomodarsi aereo aeroporto agenzia al mare al telefono albergo all'estero andare andare a piedi andarsene andata e ritorno angolo apribottiglie (m.) apriscatole (m.) arrivare arrivo ascensore (m.) assegno atterrare attesa attività (f. s.&pl.) attraversare auguri

automobile (f.) autostop autostrada autunno bagaglio bagno balcone (m.) banca banconota bar barca battello bel/bello benzina biblioteca bicicletta biglietteria biglietto binario borsa bosco brutto buona permanenza cabina telefonica caldo calore (m.) camion campagna campeggio caro carta d'identità cartello cartellone cartolina

castello cattedrale (f.) cattivo cavallo centro città centro commerciale centro sportivo cerotto chiamare chiamarsi chiesa chiusura settimanale cielo cintura di sicurezza circolazione città clima (m.) coincidenza collegamento collina commissariato compilare completo compreso confine (m.) controllore (m.) convalidare il biglietto coperto corriera costa costoso cuccetta dare su decollare dépliant (m.) deposito bagagli descrivere dichiarare disfare i bagagli disfare la valigia distrazioni (f. pl.) divertente divieto doccia documento dogana domani dritto duomo edicola edificio egoista erba escursione (f.) espresso est

fare il bagno fare il campeggio fare il numero fare il pieno fare l'autostop fare la conoscenza fare le valigie/i bagagli fattoria fermarsi fermata ferrovia festa festeggiare fiammifero figlio fiume folla fontana foresta foschia foulard freddo freno frontiera galleria gasolio gatto giardino pubblico giorno di ferie/di festa /di riposo girare giro gita gradi grazie guasto guerra guidare incendio incidente (m.) incontrare incrocio industriale informazioni (f. pl.) ingorgo insegna intenzione (f.) isola pedonale lampione (m.) lampo lato legge (f.) lento libero lira livello località

lontano lunghezza luogo macchina macchina fotografica macelleria marciapiede (m.) mare (m.) mercato messaggio metro metropolitana mezzogiorno mi scusi minuto modulo momento mondo montagna monumento morire motocicletta motore (m.) motorino multa municipio muro museo nascere nascita natura nave (f.) Nazione (f.) nebbia negozio neve nevicare noioso noleggiare noleggio non potabile nord notte nuvola nuvoloso oggetto ombrello ombrellone omicidio opuscolo ostello della gioventù (f) ovest pacchetto pacco paesaggio Paese (m.)

palazzo panetteria paninoteca parcheggiare parcheggio parco passaporto passare passeggero patente di guida pecora pedone (m.) pellicola pensione pensione completa per andare a per favore perdere periferia permesso persona piacere piano piazza piede (m.) pioggia piovere piscina pittoresco pittura polizia pomeriggio ponte (m.) popolo porta portiera porto posteggiare posteggio posto potabile prefisso prendere il sole prenotare previsioni del tempo primavera principe proseguire prossimo proveniente da pullman quadro quartiere (m.) questura quindici giorni rapido

re regina regione (f.) regolamento ricevere ricevuta rimanere ringraziare ristorante ritardo rotonda roulotte rovescio rubare ruota sabbia sacco a pelo sala d'aspetto sala giochi salire su scendere da scheda schiarita sciarpa scompartimento scontrino semaforo sempre dritto senso unico senso unico senza piombo sicurezza silenzio situazione società soffrire soggiorno sola andata sole (m.) sorpassare sorveglianza sosta spiaggia spiccioli sportello stadio stagione (f.) stato stazione (f.) stella storico strada sud supplemento svantaggio targa

tavola calda tazza teatro temperatura tempo temporale (m.) terra tessera torcia torre (f.) traffico traghetto tragitto tram tranquillo trascorrere trasporti pubblici trasporto trattoria treno trovarsi turismo turno ufficio informazioni ufficio oggetti smarriti ufficio postale ufficio turistico vacanze (f. pl.) vagone vagone-letto valigia valle vantaggio vedere veicolo veloce velocità vento verso via viaggio viale vicino a vietato vigile urbano villa vista vivere volante volantino volare volere volo

zanzara zona pedonale zoo

## Education, training and employment

a piedi accomodatevi adorare agricoltura aiutare allievo alunno ambizione (f.) ammissione (f.) animatore anno annotare annuncio anziano apprendista (m. & f.) apprendistato appuntamento architetto archiviare archivio argomento arte (f.) artista asilo assemblea astuccio aula autista di taxi autobus automobile (f.) avvocato azienda battere a macchina bene bicicletta biologia biro bocciare buca delle lettere busta calcolatrice (f.) calze (f. pl.) cameriere/a camicia campo da tennis campo sportivo capo carabiniere (m.) carriera carta

cartella cassiere/a cercare chiacchierare chiamare chimica classe (f.) codice (m.) collega collegio colloquio colpo di telefono commercialista commerciante commesso/a compagno/a compiti (m. pl.) computer conducente consigliare contabile copiare correggere corriere (m.) corso cortile (m.) cravatta cuoco/a cursore (m.) datore di lavoro detestare dimenticare dipendente diploma (m.) direttore (m.) direzione (f.) dischetto disco discutere disegnare disegno disoccupazione (f.) ditta divisa dottore (m.) durare edificio educazione (f.) educazione fisica elenco errore (m.) esame (m.) esempio esercizio fabbrica facile

fare domanda fare un corso fare uno stage farmacista finire firmare fisica formazione (f.) fotografo francese francobollo frase (f.) funzionario futuro geografia ginnastica giornata giorno gomma gonna guadagnare idraulico imparare impiegato impiego in castigo industria informatico ingegnere iniziare insegnante interessante intervallo inviare istruttore (m.) istruzione (f.) italiano laboratorio laurea lavagna lavorare lavoratore lavoro lettera lezione (f.) libro liceo lingua lista macchina maestro mal pagato mandare matematica materia matita

maturità meccanico medico mensa messaggio elettronico mestiere (m.) metodo metropolitana mittente (m.) modulo muratore (m.) musica negoziante negozio noioso occupato occupazione (f.) odiare operaio ora orario padrone (m.) paga pagare pagato pagella palestra pantaloni parola parrucchiere/a partecipante pausa del pranzo penna penna a sfera perdere permettere piacere pilota poliziotto poliziotto pompiere (m.) portapenne (m.) posta elettronica postino pranzo disegno preferire preferito preside professione (f.) professore professoressa progetto programma (m.) progresso promosso proprietario

punire punizione quaderno quadrimestre (m.) qualificato ragioniere/a registratore (m.) regola religione (f.) resti in linea riassunto ricerca righello ripetere rispondere risposta risultato ritorno riunione rivolgersi a sala musica sala professori salvare sbagliare sbaglio scambio scarpe schermo scienza scienziato scolastico scrittore scrivere scuola scuola elementare scuola materna seduti segreteria telefonica sistema di scrittura sito web sorvegliante spagnolo spedire sperimentato spiegare stampante (f.) stampare sterlina stipendio storia studente studiare suonare tastiera tecnologia tedesco

telefonare telefonata tema (m.) tempera-matite (m.) timbro trimestre ufficio università uomo d'affari vacanze estive vecchio viaggiare videoregistratore (m.) voto zainetto House, home and daily routine abitare abito aceto acqua minerale addormentarsi aggiungere aglio agnello aiutare albero albicocca alimentari alloggiare alloggio alto alzarsi amicizia amico amore (m.) ananas anatra andare a letto antipasto anziano aperitivo apparecchiare appartamento apribottiglie (m.) apriscatole (m.) arancia aranciata aria armadio arrosto aspirapolvere (m.) aver caldo aver fame aver freddo babbo

bacio baffi bagno bambino bambola banana barba bere bevanda bibita bicchiere (m.) bimbo biondo birra biscotto bisogno bistecca bocca bottiglia braccio brioche (f.) brutto bugia bugiardo buon appetito burro caffè (m.) caffettiera camera da letto camicetta cane (m.) cantina capelli cappuccino caraffa caramella carattere carino carne (f.) carota casa casalinga casseruola castano cattivo cavatappi cavia cavolfiore cavolini di Bruxelles celibe (m.) cena cenare cereali chiave (f.) cibo ciliegia

cioccolata calda cipolla cliente cocorita coda cognome (m.) colazione (f.) collo coltello confettura congelatore (m.) coniglio cono conoscente contento contenuto coperta coppa corridoio cotoletta cotto cozze (f. pl.) credenza crema crudo cucchiaiata cucchiaino cucchiaio cucina cucinare cugino/a data delizioso dentifricio divano dividere doccia dolce donna educato estate (f.) faccia fagiolini fagiolo famiglia fare il giardinaggio fare il letto fare la spesa fare le faccende farina farmaco farsi la barba fatto felice femmina fidanzato/a

figlia figlio unico fila finestra fiore forchetta formaggio forno forno a microonde fragola fratellastro fratello fresco frigorifero frittata frittella fritto frutta frutti di mare fruttivendolo fungo gabinetto gallina gas gassosa gatto gelato gemello genitore gente (f. s.) gentile giardino ginocchio (pl. -a) giovane grazioso griglia gusto impianto stereo in ritardo indirizzo infanzia ingrediente (m.) ingresso innamorato/a di insalata lampada lampone (m.) latte (m.) lavandino lavare i piatti lavarsi lavarsi i denti lavastoviglie (f.) lavatrice (f.) lavello lavorare

legumi letto libreria limonata limone (m.) luce (f.) madre (f.) maggiore maglietta magro magro maiale (m.) maleducato mamma manica maniera marito marmellata maschio mattino mela melone (m.) menù (m.) merenda mescolare mettere in ordine miele (m.) migliorare minestra minestrone (m.) minore mirtillo mobili moglie (f.) monolocale (m.) moquette (f.) morto moto neonato nipote nocciola noia nome nome di battesimo nonna nonno nubile (f.) occhiali (m. pl.) occhiali da sole offerta olio oliva onesto ordinare ordinare orecchio (m.; pl. le orecchie, f.)

origine (f.) orto ospite padella padre pagnotta pan carrè (m.) pane (m.) panettone (m.) panino panna papà pappagallo parente parete (f.) passante pasta pastiglia pasto patata patatine (f. pl.) patatine fritte paté (m.) pattumiera pavimento pensile (m.) pentola pepe (m.) peperone (m.) pera perdere personalità pesca pesce (m.) pesciolino rosso pettine (m.) petto piacevole piano piano terra pianta pianterreno piatto piccolo piede (m.) pigiama (m.) pigro piselli pollo poltrona pomodoro pompelmo porcellino d'India porta portacenere (m.) portamonete (m.)

pranzo prato prodotto prosciutto pulire pulizia qualità radersi ragazza ragazzo rasoio restare ricci riscaldamento centrale riso risotto ritornare rubinetto sala da pranzo salame sale (m.) salmone (m.) salone (m.) salotto salsiccia salumeria sandalo sapone sapore (m.) scale (f. pl.) scatola scrivania sedia senape (f.) sera serio servire servizi sidro simpatico socievole sofà (m.) soffitta soffitto soggiorno solo sorella sorellastra spazzolarsi spazzolino specchio spesa spinaci sportivo sposarsi sposato

spuntino squisito stanco stanza stare a letto stirare stivale (m.) studio stupido succo sugo sveglia svegliarsi svestirsi tacchino tagliare tappeto tardi tartaruga tasca tavola tazza tè (m.) tenda terrazza tetto timido toast tonno topo torta tovaglia tramezzino triste trota uccello ufficio uomo (pl. uomini) uovo (m.; pl. le uova, f.) uva (f. s.) vecchio verdura versare verza vestirsi vicino vino viso vitello voce (f.) zia zio zucchero zucchino

## Media, entertainment and youth culture

adulto ambiente (m.) articolo attore/attrice attualità bambino biglietto borsetta calcio calze (f. pl.) calzini (m. pl.) camicia canale (m.) cantante cantare canzone (f.) cappello cappotto cartoni animati cassetta cellulare (m.) chitarra cinema (m.) cintura cominciare commedia complesso musicale concerto Coppa del Mondo costare costume da bagno cotone (m.) cuoio disoccupazione (f.) divertente divertimento documentario droga dubbio entrata famoso fantascienza film comico film d'avventura film dell'orrore film giallo film poliziesco film romantico finire foto (f.) foulard fretta fumetto

giacca gilet gioco a quiz giornale gioventù (f.) giradischi (m.) gonna gruppo guanti (m. pl.) impegno impermeabile (m.) inizio inondazione (f.) inquinamento interpretazione (f.) lana lusso maggiorenne maglia maglione (m.) moda modella mostra motivo navigare in Internet notizia occasione (f.) opinione (f.) orecchini (m. pl.) oro pagina palla pallacanestro pallavolo pantaloni (m. pl.) parola parte (f.) partenza partita paura pensiero peso piercing (m.) politica politici posto povero prenotare prenotazione prezzo problema (m.) produzione teatrale (f.) programma a puntate (m.) programma TV (m.) prova pubblicità

pubblico quanto quotidiano racconto ragione (f.) realtà rete (f.) ribassato ribassi riduzione rivetto rivista rossetto scarpe (f. pl.) scarpe da ginnastica sceneggiato scherzo sci sciarpa sconto secolo seta sigaretta sondaggio sottotitolato spazio spettacolo spettatore squadra stampa stereo stile (m.) studente studentessa tariffa telefonino telegiornale (m.) telenovela televisione via satellite (f.) tennis tifoso tossicodipendente traffico trasmissione triste truccarsi trucco tuta sportiva valore (m.) varietà vestiti vestito videogioco violenza

## **Social activities**

a buon mercato abbronzarsi acquistare acquisti affare andare a cavallo andare a far visita a andare a pesca andare a prendere andare a trovare andare in bicicletta andare sullo skateboard anello anticipo apertura ascoltare atletica attimo auguri baciare balcone (m.) ballare banca batteria ben cotto benvenuto bottiglia buio buon appetito Buon Natale cambio cameriere canna da pesca Capodanno caro carta di credito cartoleria cassa centro commerciale centro sportivo chiusura ciao ciclista circolo giovanile città gemellata colore (m.) compleanno comprare conto coperto corrispondente costare credito dare del lei dare del tu

denaro discoteca divertirsi drogheria escursione fai-da-te far parte di fare dello sport fare equitazione (f.) fare il bagno fare sci nautico fare tavola a vela fare una camminata fare una passeggiata fare vela Felice Anno Nuovo festa fidanzamento flauto fumetto fuochi d'artificio giocattolo gioco di società gioco elettronico gioielleria gioielli giornata di riposo giorno festivo gita guardare incontrare inverno invito lago leggere lettura locale notturno luna mancia matrimonio mercato misura moneta Natale negozio nell'angolo nozze numero nuotare odore (m.) ordinare orologio paghetta pallone Pasqua passatempo

pasticceria pattini a rotelle pescheria piantina piatto del giorno pila pista da pattinaggio portafoglio prendere il sole presentare prezzo profumo quanto regalare regalo reparto resto rilassarsi riposarsi risparmiare romanzo rumore (m.) saldi (m. pl.) scacchi scelta servirsi da soli servizio compreso soldi specialità spendere spese (f. pl.) sportivo squadra supermercato svago tabaccheria taglia terrazza torta della casa trovarsi con tuffarsi uscire vegetariano vendere vetrina viaggio violino

## **Fitness and health**

alcool allenarsi ammalarsi appetito appuntamento aspirina avere mal d'orecchi avere mal di denti avere mal di gola avere mal di pancia avere mal di schiena avere mal di stomaco avere mal di testa caso chilo chilometro clinica come sta/stai? compressa corpo corsa cura curare dare fastidio dente (m.) dentista dieta disastro dito dolore (m.) dormire dottore droga emergenza età fame (f.) far male farmacia farsi male fastidio fazzoletto (di carta) febbre (f.) ferire ferirsi ferito fumare fumatori fumo gamba gola grasso grave guarire infermiere/a influenza la mano (f.; pl. le mani) labbro (m., pl. le labbra, f.) linea malato malattia medicina medico morte (f.)

naso occhio operare ospedale (m.) pallido pancia pillola pollice (m.) prendere pronto soccorso pungere puntura raffreddore (m.) ricetta medica riposarsi salute (f.) sangue (m.) sano sciroppo schiena sciroppo sentirsi male sesso spalla stare meglio stomaco stress testa tosse (f.) tossire vegetariano vita vitamina vittima vomitare

## Non topic specific

#### Acronyms

FS IVA ONU RAI TV UE

## Social conventions

a domani a dopo a presto aiuto arrivederci arrivederla attenzione auguri bravo/a buona notte buona sera buongiorno che tempo fa? ciao grazie mi dispiace mi scusi pazienza per piacere per favore prego salve scusami volentieri

### Prepositions

а a causa di accanto a alla fine di attraverso con contro da davanti a di fronte a dietro dopo durante eccetto fino a fuori di in in mezzo a insieme a intorno a invece di lontano da per prima di secondo senza sopra sotto su tra tramite tranne verso vicino a

## Adjectives

adatto affascinante affettuoso all'aperto alto altro amaro amichevole antico antipatico appassionante arrabbiato assurdo attento attivo attuale basso bello breve brutto buffo buono carino celebre chiuso chiuso a chiave comodo corto debole destro di buon umore di gran valore differente difficile di legno dinamico diretto diritto disgustoso diverso divertente dolce duro eccellente ecologico economico educato elegante entusiasmante esatto esperto estero falso fantastico faticoso forte geloso generale geniale giovane giusto

grande grandioso grasso grato gratuito grosso imbarazzante immediato immigrato importante incredibile inferiore innocente intelligente internazionale interno largo leggero libero lungo magico magnifico marcio massimo maturo medio meraviglioso meridionale migliore minerale minimo misto mondiale morbido mosso necessario negativo nemico nervoso normale notturno nucleare nudo numeroso nuovo orgoglioso orrendo orribile ottimo pazzo peggiore perfetto pericoloso pesante piccante pieno

possibile pratico precedente preferito primo principale privato probabile profondo proibito pronto proprio prossimo pulito puro quadrato raro reale recente ricco ricercato rotto rumoroso sano scemo scorso secco segreto seguente semplice sensato sensazionale sereno serio settimanale severo sicuro silenzioso simile singolo sinistro soddisfatto solito solo speciale spiacente sporco stesso stradale straniero strano stretto stupido sveglio tenero terribile

terzo tipico tranquillo uguale ultimo umido unico urbano urgente utile valido vero vicino vuoto Verbs abbracciare accendere accomodarsi accompagnare accontentare addormentarsi affittare agitare amare annoiarsi appartenere aprire arrabbiarsi ascoltare aspettare assaggiare assomigliare aver bisogno di aver paura aver ragione aver torto avere badare a bere bruciare bussare buttare cadere cambiare cambiarsi camminare capire cercare chiedere chiudere colpire comandare comportarsi conoscere contare

correre costruire credere crescere cuocere dare decidere desiderare dimostrare dire discutere diventare divorziare domandare dormire dovere entrare esistere essere far vedere fare bella figura fare brutta figura fare colazione fare una domanda farsi la doccia fermare fidanzarsi finire frenare fuggire funzionare giocare gridare guidare immaginare imprestare incominciare indicare indovinare informare insegnare interessarsi a/di inventare investire invitare lasciare litigare mancare mangiare meritare mettere occuparsi di offrire organizzare osservare ottenere

parlare partecipare partire passeggiare pattinare pensare perdonare permettere pescare pettinare piangere picchiare portare posare potere pranzare praticare pregare prendere prendere in prestito preparare prestare promettere proteggere provare raccontare rallentare riattaccare ricordarsi ridere riempire riparare risolvere rispettare ritirare ritornare riunire riuscire rompere salire saltare salutare sapere sbrigarsi scambiare scappare scegliere scherzare sciare scoprire scrivere scusarsi sdraiarsi sedersi seguire sembrare

sentire smettere sognare sopportare sorridere sostituire spegnere sperare spingere spogliarsi spostare stato succedere superare tacere tenere tentare terminare tirare toccare togliere tornare traslocare trasportare trovare ubbidire usare utilizzare venire vietare visitare vivere volare volere

## Colours

azzurro bianco blu bruno castano chiaro giallo grigio marrone nero rosa rosso scuro verde viola

### ancora avanti circa da molto tempo da solo dappertutto dentro dove dovunque dunque finora forse già giù in fondo in giù in piedi in su indietro insomma insieme là laggiù lassù lì mai male meglio meno molto ormai peggio per molto tempo più piuttosto poco pure purtroppo qua qualche volta quasi qui recentemente sempre soltanto specialmente

spesso

subito

troppo tuttavia

## **Adverbs**

allora almeno anche

## Quantities

chilo chilometro abbastanza alcuni doppio dozzina etto fetta grammo lattina litro metà mezzo molto paio parecchio sacchetto tanto un barattolo di un pacchetto di un pezzo di un po' di un terzo di una bottiglia di una dozzina di una lattina di una scatola di

#### **Connecting words**

che chi anche così e in seguito ma mentre 0 oppure però poi prima di tutto quindi né neanche

## **Time expressions**

adesso all'inizio di tanto in tanto domani dopodomani fra poco giornata giorno ieri il giorno dopo in orario in tempo l'altro ieri mattino oggi ogni tanto ora presto sera serata settimana tardi tutti i giorni

### Expressions

ancora una volta basta buona fortuna certo che peccato come si scrive? come va? con piacere d'accordo di solito dipende ecco essere in via di essere sul punto di fa lo stesso naturalmente non importa peccato secondo me stare per tanto meglio va bene

## Other words

ciò come cosa fine forma modo nessuno niente no nulla numero per esempio perché qualcosa qualcuno quale quando quello questo se si Signora Signore, Signor Signorina tipo tutto volta

## **Countries etc**

Africa Austria Belgio Danimarca Europa Firenze Francia Galles Germania Gran Bretagna Grecia Inghilterra Irlanda Italia Londra Manica Olanda Olimpiadi Regno Unito Scozia Spagna Stati Uniti Svezia Svizzera Vaticano Venezia

## **Nationalities**

africano americano austriaco belga danese europeo francese gallese greco inglese irlandese italiano olandese russo scozzese spagnolo svedese svizzero tedesco

## Areas/mountains

Alpi Appennini Meridione (m.) Sardegna Sicilia

## **Appendix 4 – Procedures for internal assessment**

# PROCEDURES FOR 2FA and 2HA – TEACHER ASSESSED ORAL EXAMINATION

## **Recording marks on Form L3**

Please note that the L3 form has five sections for recording marks and **asterisks on the L3** form denote where marks should be entered.

Please complete sections <u>1, 3 and 4</u> for Foundation candidates or <u>2, 3 and 5</u> for Higher candidates.

Please tick the appropriate box on section 6 and ensure that you do not write in the shaded boxes (moderator use only).

If the marking is being carried out by the teacher-examiner, insert the appropriate mark for each element in the relevant asterisked box marked '**Centre mark**' on the L3.

Total the marks at the end of the test or at the end of the session. Insert total marks for the oral test on the L3 in the box marked '**Final mark**'.

Please note that the **Higher Tier** will be recorded out of **150**. The use of the digit **1** in front of the candidate's score is simply to register that the candidate has taken the **Higher Tier** examination – thus a candidate's mark of 122 is equivalent to a mark of 22/50 on Higher Tier. The Higher Tier final mark box already includes the digit **1** for the final mark.

However, when transferring the Higher candidates' marks to the 2HA OPTEMS form please remember to record the three-figure mark.

## Internal standardisation of marking

Centres are reminded that it is their responsibility to ensure that where more than one teacher has marked the work, internal standardisation has been carried out. This procedure ensures that the work of all candidates at the centre is marked to the same standards. The statement confirming this on the OPTEMS or the EDI printout must be signed.

Consistency may be achieved in a variety of ways, some of which are given below.

- 1 A group of teachers may review the moderated tapes for the previous year's examination where appropriate to confirm that their marking is in line with national standards.
- 2 A group of teachers could listen to a selection of tapes (mocks/tests, etc) and agree assessment techniques and standards of marking with colleagues.
- 3 One teacher could sit in for the first hour of a colleague's oral examining and mark it independently.
- 4 Where staffing levels permit, the Head of Department or another experienced teacher could sit in on the examinations and assess all candidates while their own teacher conducts the tests.
- 5 A group of teachers or a single experienced individual may prefer to play back all the recordings after the examinations and make appropriate adjustments to the assessments.

There are clear advantages and disadvantages with any of the methods shown above. Centres are **not** required to have more than one teacher in the examination room and, in the last analysis, each centre should choose the method which best suits its circumstances.

## Procedures for recording and submitting marks for 2FA/2HA

All centres which have entered candidates for the teacher-assessed oral component will receive OPTEMS for 2FA (Foundation Tier) and 2HA (Higher Tier). Centres must complete the correct OPTEMS for each candidate **according to the tier taken**, **2FA or 2HA**. (The tier not taken by the candidate should be left blank.)

If a candidate is absent please enter ABS on both OPTEMS (2FA and 2HA).

Please enter the candidate's final mark for the correct tier.

If a candidate has taken the Foundation Tier (2FA) a mark from 0 - 50 should be recorded.

If a candidate has taken the Higher Tier (2HA) a mark from 100 – 150 should be recorded.

Centres will have the option of:

## EITHER

recording marks on an optically-read teacher-examiner mark sheet OPTEMS, Section 1.

### OR

recording marks on computer for transfer to Edexcel by means of electronic data interchange (EDI), Section 2.

## Section 1: Centres using OPTEMS

1.1 OPTEMS will be pre-printed on three-part stationery with specification and paper number, centre details and candidate names in candidate number order. A number of blank OPTEMS for candidates not listed will also be supplied.

The top copy is designed so that the marks can be read directly by an optical mark reader. It is important therefore to complete the OPTEMS carefully in accordance with the instructions below. **Please do not fold or crease the sheets**.

- 1.2 Before completing the OPTEMS please check the subject, paper and centre details, to ensure the correct sheet is being completed.
- 1.3 All candidates entered by the deadline date will be listed on the OPTEMS.
- 1.4 Late entries will need to be added in pencil either in additional spaces on the preprinted OPTEMS or on one of the blank OPTEMS which will be supplied. Please note that full details of the centre, specification, paper, candidates' names and candidate numbers must be added to ALL blank OPTEMS.
- 1.5 The OPTEMS should be completed **using an HB pencil**. Please ensure that you work on a firm, flat surface and that figures written in the marks box go through to the second and third copies.
- 1.6 For each candidate, first ensure you have checked the arithmetic on the L3, then transfer the **Total Mark** to the box of the OPTEMS labelled 'Marks' for the correct candidate (please see exemplar).

1.7 Encode the component mark for each candidate for either 2FA or 2HA on the righthand side by drawing a line to join the two dots inside the ellipses on the appropriate marks. Clear, dark **HB pencil** lines must be made but they must not extend outside the ellipses on either side of the two dots. Take care to remember the trailing zeros for candidates scoring 10, 20, etc and the leading zero for single figures, as shown.

If you make a mistake, rub out the incorrect marks and amend the number in the marks box and in the encoded section, but **please remember to amend separately the second and third copies** to ensure that the correct mark is clear on **each** copy.

Every candidate listed on the OPTEMS must have either a mark or one of the following codes in the marks box on either the 2FA or the 2HA OPTEMS.

**0** (zero marks) should be entered only if work submitted has been found to be worthless. It should **not** be used where candidates have failed to submit work.

**ABS** should be entered in the marks box and an **A** in the encoded section for any candidate who has been absent or has failed to submit any work, even if an aegrotat award has been requested.

W should be entered in the marks box and the encoded section where the candidate has been withdrawn.

Exemplar
----------

Candidate name	Number	Marks												
NEW ALAN JB	3200	0	<del>(न0न)</del> <del>(न0न)</del>	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(÷60÷) (÷6÷)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(÷80÷) (÷8÷)	(÷90÷) (÷9÷)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
OTHER AMY JB	3201	5	<del>(+0+)</del> (+0+)	(+10+) (+1+)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(+50+) -(+5+)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
SMITH JOHN PN	3202	ABS	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
WATTS MARK JB	3203	20	(÷0÷) <del>(÷0÷)</del>	(+10+) (+1+)	(+20+) (+2+)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
STEVEN JANE PN	3204	49	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	(+10+) (+1+)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	<del>(+40+)</del> (+4+)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) <del>(+9+)</del>	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
JONES ANN PN	3205	100	<del>(न0न)</del> <del>(न0न)</del>	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(÷60÷) (÷6÷)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(÷80÷) (÷8÷)	(÷90÷) (÷9÷)	( <del>*100*</del> ) (*A*)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
RAJ PATEL PN	3206	115	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	<del>(*10*)</del> (*1*)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) <del>(+5+)</del>	(÷60÷) (÷6÷)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(÷80÷) (÷8÷)	(÷90÷) (÷9÷)	( <del>*100*</del> ) (*A*)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
WEST SARA JB	3207	W	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(÷60÷) (÷6÷)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(÷80÷) (÷8÷)	(÷90÷) (÷9÷)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) ( <del>÷W÷)</del>

#### **Encoded section**

- 1.8 Once completed and signed the three-part sets should then be divided and despatched within 48 hours of the examination, or retained as follows:
- 1.9 **Top copy** to be returned direct to Edexcel in the envelope provided. Please remember this form **must not be folded or creased**.
- 1.10 **Second copy** to be sent **with all the tapes** to the moderator. The name and address of the moderator will either be printed on the OPTEMS or supplied separately.
- 1.11 **Third copy** to be retained by the centre.

## Section 2: Centres using EDI

- 2.1 Marks must be recorded on computer for 2FA and 2HA and transmitted to Edexcel within 48 hours of the examination. They must be recorded in accordance with the specifications in the booklet 'Formats for the Exchange of Examination Related Data using Microcomputers'. Each mark has a status as well as a value. Status codes are:
  - S valid non-zero mark recorded for all candidates
  - Z zero mark recorded for work submitted
  - A absent for component.

### 2.2 **Printout**

Centres are required to produce a printout of the centre-assessed marks and annotate it as described below, before forwarding it **together with the tapes within 48 hours of the examination**. The name and address of the moderator will either be printed on the OPTEMS or supplied separately.

- ABS absent
- W withdrawn

Where more than one teacher has assessed the work the teachers' initials or the set number should be given beside each candidate's name.

Centres are reminded that it is their responsibility to ensure that internal standardisation of the marking is carried out. The following **authentication** and **internal standardisation** statement should be written at the bottom of the printout and signed by the teacher responsible:

'I declare that the work of each candidate for whom marks are listed is, to the best of my knowledge, the candidate's own and that where several teaching groups are involved the marking has been internally standardised to ensure consistency across groups.'

Signed ..... Date .....

NB Centres are advised to retain a copy of the annotated printout.

## 2.3 L3s

Centres will be provided with copies of the L3 on two-part NCR. The L3, to be completed for each candidate, provides the moderator with details of how each candidate's total mark has been reached. It is the teacher's responsibility to ensure that:

- all marks are recorded accurately and that the arithmetic is correct
- the total mark is transferred correctly onto the OPTEMS or via EDI.

Centres should send the **top copy** of the L3s separately to the **moderator** and **retain the bottom copy** for their records.

# ACTION AFTER COMPLETION OF THE ORAL EXAMINATION FOR 2FA, 2HA, 2FB AND 2HB

## Preparation and despatch of materials to the moderator

Centres should send **all** tapes for 2FA/2HA or 2FB/2HB to the appropriate moderator or examiner.

For 2FA/2HA only, when all examining in the language concerned is complete, all L3 forms must be carefully checked and the total mark out of **50** for each **Foundation** candidate or out of **150** for each **Higher** candidate must be transferred to the appropriate box on OPTEMS for each paper. All relevant mark boxes must contain a mark.

All L3 forms must contain all the appropriate centre and candidate details – correct candidate numbers are essential.

All L3 forms must include rôle-play details and the conversation topics chosen by the candidate (Topic 1) and by the teacher-examiner (Topic 2).

All the L3 forms should be arranged in candidate number order.

Each tape must be numbered and the number indicated in the appropriate box on the L3 form.

Every cassette tape and box must be numbered and clearly labelled with centre name and number and the language being examined. Centres will be provided with photocopiable cassette inserts. Each side of each cassette must indicate the candidate numbers of candidates recorded on it.

Computer-printed address labels will be supplied, showing the name of the examiner/moderator and the syllabus and paper numbers. As soon as all materials are ready and within 48 hours of the completion of examining within the language concerned, material should be despatched to the examiner/moderator in two separate consignments as follows.

## For centres taking 2FA/2HA (marking by the teacher-examiner)

Parcel 1: Top white copies of L3 for all candidates (bottom copies to be retained by centre).

Parcel 2: All tapes, and the middle copy of OPTEMS or EDI printout.

#### For centres taking 2FB/2HB (marking by an Edexcel examiner)

- Parcel 1: Both copies of L3 for all candidates.
- **Parcel 2**: All tapes and the top copy of the attendance register (bottom copy to be retained by the centre).

Where the size of the candidature makes it necessary to split parcels (whether of documentation or cassettes), they should be numbered clearly on the outside (eg package 1 of 2).

## Centres are reminded that all candidates must be recorded and the recordings despatched to the examiner/moderator.



# **L3**

## GCSE Modern Foreign Languages Candidate Mark Sheet for Paper 2: Speaking

Candidate Name				Candidate Nº		
Centre Name				Centre Nº		
Language		Spec. Nº Tape Nº			Side: A/B	
teacher-examiner's Name (Block capitals please)						

(1) FOUNDATION: Rôle-plays A and B (Max mark = 20)								
Rôle-play A	Ed. use only	Rôle-play B	Edexcel use only	Total A + B	Edexcel use only			
Card №	TL	Card Nº	TL		TL			
Centre mark (Max = 10)	Moderator mark (Max = 10)	Centre mark (Max = 10)	Moderator mark (Max = 10)	Centre total (Max = 20)	Moderator total (Max = 20)			
*		*		*				

OR										
(2) HIGHER: Rôle-plays B and C (Max mark = 20)										
Rôle-play B	Ed. use only	Rôle-play C	Edexcel use only	Total B + C	Edexcel use only					
Card Nº	TL	Card №	TL		TL					
Centre mark (Max = 10)	Mod. mark (Max = 10)	Centre mark (Max = 10)	Moderator mark (Max = 10)	Centre total (Max = 20)	Moderator total (Max = 20)					
*		*		*						

(3) FOUNDATION and HIGHER: Conversation (Max mark = 30)									
Topic Title(s)	1				2				
	Centre r	nark							
					Edexcel use only: Mo	derator mark			
Comm (Max = 10)	Lang (Max = 10)	Acc (Max = 10)	Total (Max = 30)	Comm (Max = 10)	Lang (Max = 10)	Acc (Max = 10)	Total (Max = 30)		
*	*	*	*						
				TL	TL	TL	TL		

(4) Final Mark (Max 50) FOUNDATION		<u>OR</u>	(5) Final Mark ( HIGHE				Paper se tick)
Total A + B	*		Total B + C	*		2FA	
Conversation	*		Conversation	*		2HA	
TOTAL (/50)	*		TOTAL (/150)	* 1		2FB	
Edexcel use only			Edexcel use only	1	]	2НВ	

Moderator's Name (Block capitals please) NPP N°

## WRITING COURSEWORK

## **1** Summary of requirements

- a Students are required to submit three units of work from three of the five main topic areas identified in the specification.
- b A unit may include several short pieces of work, or may consist of a single piece of extended writing.
- c A copy of any stimulus material used must be submitted for each coursework task. Page references of commonly used textbooks may be given but centres may be asked by moderators for copies of these. (See Section 10.2b.)
- d Students aiming for grades G-D should aim to submit 250-350 words over the three units.
- e Students aiming for grades C-A\* should aim to submit 500-600 words over the three units.
- f At least one third of the total work submitted by each student must be produced under controlled conditions and this **must include one complete unit** (see below).
- g A piece of work may be redrafted once only and the original version must be included in the student's coursework folder. Teachers must not correct individual mistakes, but should make general comments. These should be recorded on the standard coursework feedback forms and teachers must **not** write on the samples of student coursework.
- h Students should have access to a dictionary at all stages during the production of their coursework.
- i Edexcel will require teachers to authenticate the coursework by signing the coursework frontsheet. Centres are reminded that where students have collaborated, eg on the production of questionnaires or surveys, credit may only be given to a student for work that can readily be identified as his/her own. The inclusion of the work of another student, not acknowledged as such, could render the student liable to disciplinary action by Edexcel.

Teachers will award a global mark out of 20 to each unit of work. Tasks which make up the unit must not be awarded individual marks.

## 2 Controlled conditions

- a Work must be done in the classroom and supervised by the teacher.
- b Students may only have access to the stimulus for the task and a dictionary.
- c All stimulus material other than a dictionary must be submitted in the student's folder. For students aiming at grades G-D this may be items such as photographs, diagrams, gap-fill letters and short messages. For students aiming at grades C-A\* this may be an article, letter or brochure, and/or notes in the form of headings only and on no more than half a page of A4.

- d If work is not completed in a single session, the teacher must store it securely until the next controlled conditions session.
- e At least a third of the total coursework for each candidate must be produced under controlled conditions, but teachers may increase this proportion at their discretion.

## 3 Guidance and feedback to students

- a Teachers may wish to give students the opportunity to redraft their work, in which case teachers are reminded that they should not mark students' work, underline or otherwise indicate errors, nor correct specific points of language.
- b If the teacher feels that redrafting or refining is appropriate, she/he may make general comments on the coursework feedback form, ie indicate an area of content that would benefit from greater detail or highlight general areas of language that need attention, such as agreements, verbs, accents, etc.

Teachers should indicate on the coursework frontsheet if they found it necessary to offer students help beyond that specified above. This must then be taken into account when awarding marks.

## 4 Standardisation of marking within centres

In accordance with the Code of Practice, where two or more teachers are involved in the assessment of work, it is the responsibility of the centre to standardise the marking of all teacher-examiners to ensure that all candidates in the centre have been judged by the same standards. In order to ensure that there is effective internal standardisation the following procedures may be adopted:

- a coursework tasks can be standardised in advance
- b when students have completed a unit of work each teacher brings samples of work including the **best, worst** and **average** from their class to a meeting
- c at the meeting work is compared, discussed and cross-marked. A common standard is agreed
- d after the meeting teachers assess the work of all their own students
- e a designated person takes a small sample from each teacher and checks that a common standard has been applied by all teachers. At this stage adjustments can be made if necessary.

## 5 Procedures for recording and submitting coursework marks

All centres will receive optically-read teacher-examiner mark sheets (OPTEMS). Centres will have the option of:

## EITHER

recording marks on an optically-read teacher-examiner mark sheet (OPTEMS), Section 6

#### OR

recording marks on computer for transfer to Edexcel by means of EDI, Section 7

Sections 8 and 9 apply whichever option is selected and deal with coursework record sheets and the sample of work required for moderation.

## 6 Centres using OPTEMS

6.1 OPTEMS will be pre-printed on three-part stationery with syllabus and paper number, centre details and candidate names in candidate number order. A number of blank OPTEMS for candidates not listed will also be supplied.

The top copy is designed so that the marks can be read directly by an optical mark reader. It is important therefore to complete the OPTEMS carefully in accordance with the instructions below. **Please do not fold or crease the sheets**.

- 6.2 Before completing the OPTEMS please check the subject, paper and centre details, to ensure the correct sheet is being completed.
- 6.3 All candidates entered by the deadline date will be listed on the OPTEMS, except those carrying forward their centre-assessed marks from the previous year. Such candidates will be listed on a separate OPTEMS coded T for Transferred. Any OPTEMS coded T should be checked, signed to confirm the transfer, and the top copy returned to Edexcel. No mark should be entered.
- 6.4 Late entries will need to be added in pencil either in additional spaces on the preprinted OPTEMS or on one of the blank OPTEMS which will be supplied. Please note that full details of the centre, specification/module, paper, candidates' names and candidate numbers must be added to ALL blank OPTEMS.
- 6.5 The OPTEMS should be completed **using an HB pencil**. Please ensure that you work on a firm, flat surface and that figures written in the marks box go through to the second and third copies.
- 6.6 For each candidate, first ensure you have checked the arithmetic on the coursework record sheet, then transfer the **Total Mark** to the box of the OPTEMS labelled 'Marks' for the correct candidate (please see exemplar).
- 6.7 Encode the component mark on the right-hand side by drawing a line to join the two dots inside the ellipses on the appropriate marks. Clear, dark **HB pencil** lines must be made but they must not extend outside the ellipses on either side of the two dots. Take care to remember the trailing zeros for candidates scoring 10, 20, etc and the leading zero for single figures, as shown.
- 6.8 If you make a mistake rub out the incorrect marks completely. Amend the number in the marks box and in the encoded section, but **please remember to amend separately the second and third copies** to ensure that the correct mark is clear on every copy.
- 6.9 Every candidate listed on the OPTEMS must have either a mark or one of the following codes in the marks box.
  - a **0** (zero marks) should be entered only if work submitted has been found to be worthless. It should not be used where candidates have failed to submit work.
  - **ABS** should be entered in the marks box and an A in the encoded section for any candidate who has been absent or has failed to submit any work, even if an aegrotat award has been requested.
  - c W should be entered in the marks box and the encoded section where the candidate has been withdrawn.

## Exemplar

Candidate name	Number	Marks												
NEW ALAN JB	3200	0	<del>(न0न)</del> <del>(न0न)</del>	(+10+) (+1+)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(+50+) (+5+)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
OTHER AMY JB	3201	5	<del>(+0+)</del> (+0+)	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) <del>(+5+)</del>	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
SMITH JOHN PN	3202	ABS	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
WATTS MARK JB	3203	20	(÷0÷) <del>(÷0÷)</del>	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	( <del>*20*)</del> (*2*)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) (÷5÷)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
STEVEN JANE PN	3204	49	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	(+10+) (+1+)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	<del>(+40+)</del> (+4+)	(+50+) (+5+)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) <del>(+9+)</del>	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
JONES ANN PN	3205	100	<del>(न0न)</del> <del>(न0न)</del>	(+10+) (+1+)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(+50+) (+5+)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	( <del>*100*</del> ) (*A*)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
RAJ PATEL PN	3206	115	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	<del>(+10+)</del> (+1+)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(÷50÷) <del>(+5+)</del>	(÷60÷) (÷6÷)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(÷90÷) (÷9÷)	( <del>*100*</del> ) (*A*)	(÷200÷) (÷W÷)
WEST SARA JB	3207	W	(÷0÷) (÷0÷)	(÷10÷) (÷1÷)	(÷20÷) (÷2÷)	(÷30÷) (÷3÷)	(÷40÷) (÷4÷)	(+50+) (+5+)	(+60+) (+6+)	(÷70÷) (÷7÷)	(+80+) (+8+)	(+90+) (+9+)	(÷100÷) (÷A÷)	(÷200÷) ( <del>÷W÷)</del>

**Encoded section** 

- 6.10 Where more than one teacher has assessed the work, the teacher's initials or set number should be given to the right of each candidate's name as illustrated.
- 6.11 The authentication and internal standardisation statement on the OPTEMS must be signed. Centres are reminded that it is their responsibility to ensure that internal standardisation of the marking has been carried out.
- 6.12 Once completed and signed the three-part sets should then be divided and despatched **by early May** (date to be specified in advance by Edexcel) or retained as follows:
- a **Top copy** to be returned direct to Edexcel in the envelope provided. Please remember this form **must not be folded or creased**
- b **Second copy** to be sent **with the sampled coursework** as appropriate to the moderator. The name and address of the moderator will either be printed on the OPTEMS or supplied separately
- c Third copy to be retained by the centre.

## 7 Centres using EDI

- 7.1 Marks must be recorded on computer and transmitted to Edexcel by **early May** (date to be specified in advance by Edexcel). They must be recorded in accordance with the specifications in the booklet 'Formats for the Exchange of Examination Related Data using Microcomputers'. Each mark has a status as well as a value. Status codes are:
  - V valid non-zero mark recorded; candidate not pre-selected as part of the sample for moderation
  - S valid non-zero mark recorded and candidate included in sample for moderation

- Z zero mark recorded for work submitted
- N no work submitted but candidate not absent
- A absent for component
- M missing mark; no information available about the candidate's previous performance
- **F** mark carried forward from a previous examination series. (If the mark status is 'F', then no mark follows.)

The OPTEMS provided will indicate, with asterisks, the candidates whose work is to be sampled, where this is pre-selected.

#### 7.2 **Printout**

Centres are required to produce a printout of the centre-assessed marks and annotate it as described below, before forwarding it **together with the sampled coursework** as appropriate to the moderator, **to be received by early May (date to be specified in advance by Edexcel).** The name and address of the moderator will either be printed on the OPTEMS or supplied separately.

ABS – absent

- W withdrawn
- \* sampled candidate
- $\times$  additional sampled candidates.

Where more than one teacher has assessed the work the teacher's initials or the set number should be given beside each candidate's name.

Centres are reminded that it is their responsibility to ensure that internal standardisation of the marking is carried out. The following **authentication** and **internal standardisation** statement should be written at the bottom of the printout and signed by the teacher responsible:

'I declare that the work of each candidate for whom marks are listed is, to the best of my knowledge, the candidate's own and that where several teaching groups are involved the marking has been internally standardised to ensure consistency across groups.'

Signed ..... Date .....

Centres are advised to retain a copy of the annotated printout.

## 8 Coursework frontsheets

- 8.1 A copy of the coursework frontsheet is given in this appendix for centres to photocopy. The coursework frontsheet, to be completed for each candidate, provides details for the moderator of how each candidate's total mark has been reached. It is the teacher's responsibility to ensure that:
  - ÷ all marks are recorded accurately and that the arithmetic is correct
  - ÷ the total mark is transferred correctly onto the OPTEMS or via EDI
  - + any required authentication statement is signed by the candidate and/or teacher as appropriate.
- 8.2 Where a candidate's work is included in the sample the coursework record sheet should be attached to the work.

## 9 Sample of work for moderation

9.1 **The pre-printed OPTEMS is asterisked indicating** the candidates whose work is to be sampled. This work, together with the second copy of the OPTEMS, should be posted to reach the moderator **by early May (date to be specified in advance by Edexcel).** The name and address of the moderator will either be printed on the OPTEMS or supplied separately.

In addition, the centre must send the work of the candidate awarded the **highest** mark and the work of the candidate awarded the **lowest** mark, if these are not already included within the initial samples selected. The centre should indicate the additional samples by means of a tick (X) in the left-hand column against the names of each of the candidates concerned.

For all sampled work the associated record sheet must be attached to each candidate's work.

If the pre-selected sample does NOT adequately represent ALL parts of the entire mark range for the centre, additional samples in the range(s) not covered should also be sent to the moderator. As above, additional samples should be indicated by means of a tick (X).

For centres submitting marks by EDI the candidates in the sample selected on the OPTEMS should be marked with an asterisk (\*) or a tick (X), as appropriate, on the EDI printout. The annotated printout must be sent to the moderator with the sample of work.

9.2 Where the pre-printed OPTEMS is not asterisked and there are 11 or fewer candidates, the coursework of ALL candidates together with the second copy of the OPTEMS should be posted to reach the moderator by early May (date to be specified in advance by Edexcel). The moderator's name and address will either be printed on the OPTEMS or supplied separately. The associated record sheet must be attached to each candidate's work.

If there are more than 11 candidates, the centre should send the second copy of the OPTEMS or the annotated EDI printout to reach the moderator by early May (date to be specified in advance by Edexcel). The moderator's name and address will either be printed on the OPTEMS or supplied separately. The moderator will advise the centre of the candidates whose work, with the associated record sheets, should be posted to the moderator by return.

9.3 **In all cases** please note that the moderator may request further samples of coursework, as required, and the work of all candidates should be readily available in the event of such a request.

There will be no asterisks on the OPTEMS supplied for 2FA and 2HA orals.

## Internal standardisation

Centres are reminded that it is their responsibility to ensure that where more than one teacher has marked the work, internal standardisation has been carried out. This procedure ensures that the work of all candidates at the centre is marked to the same standards. The statement confirming this on the OPTEMS or the EDI printout must be signed.

## **10 Presentation of coursework**

- 10.1 The work of each candidate should be fastened together using string, tags or similar fasteners. It may be secured in a thin card or paper cover supplied by the centre, but stiff-backed files, lever-arch files, etc should not be used.
- 10.2 Only work to be assessed, as prescribed by the specification, should be included, ie classroom activities. Verb tables, vocabulary lists, etc should not be included unless these were used as specific stimuli.

### The coursework submission for each candidate should include:

- a three units of coursework, each clearly marked with the candidate's name, the date, and a note of the conditions under which each piece of work/unit was completed
- a copy of all stimulus materials used. One copy of each piece of stimulus material is sufficient. If reference to a specific textbook is made, please include one photocopy of each page referred to together with the stimulus materials (or page references in the case of commonly used textbooks).
   Centres must be able to produce copies of these if required by the moderator
- c original versions of and teachers' comments on any pieces of work which have been redrafted
- d one coursework frontsheet, form CF1 for each candidate (photocopiable from the appendices).
- e the teacher's signed declaration (at the bottom of form CF1) to authenticate the coursework as the candidate's own.

## 11 Form CF1 coursework frontsheet

- 11.1 One form must be completed for each candidate. Enter the centre number, candidate details and subject details in the boxes at the top left of the form (photocopiable from the CF1 form in this appendix).
- 11.2 In the columns below enter the date on which each unit was completed, the tasks and stimuli for each unit and a note of the conditions under which the work was produced. In the columns at the right-hand side of the page note the marks awarded out of 10 for communication and content and out of five for knowledge and application of language and accuracy of language in each unit. In addition please enter the approximate number of words per unit and the topic area.
- 11.3 Add together the marks from both columns to give a final total out of 60 and write this mark in the box at the top right of the form.
- 11.4 Sign and date the form to authenticate the candidate's work.

## **12 Moderation procedures**

- 12.1 The marks submitted to Edexcel for paper 4C will be moderated in accordance with the requirements set out in section 4 of the Code of Practice for the GCSE.
- 12.2 An approved moderator will be assigned to each centre by Edexcel.
- 12.3 The moderator will be responsible for standardising marks across several centres.
- 12.4 The moderator may request a second sample from the centre if deemed necessary.
- 12.5 Centres' marks will be adjusted where the moderated and unmoderated marks differ. Normally, moderation will not affect the order of merit established by a centre. However, Edexcel will take appropriate action in cases where there is evidence of inconsistent assessment in order to align standards. If necessary, such centres will be directed to review their assessment and internal moderation procedures.
- 12.6 Edexcel will provide centres with their moderated marks. The moderator will write a report for each centre containing advice, comments and reasons for adjustments, if made.
- 12.7 Coursework not submitted for external moderation should be retained by the centre, in secure conditions, until 1 December of the examination year. In the event of an Enquiry About Results involving coursework, the head of the centre will be asked to confirm in writing that the coursework has been held under secure conditions by the centre following the submission of the OPTEMS form.

## **Coursework feedback sheet (CFS1)**

CONTENT							
Task completion							
Some parts of the task have not been covered							
Fails to meet the requirements of the task							
Presentation							
Presentation and layout to be tidied up							
Interest							
Add some more ideas/introduction/conclusion							
Give more description							
Give more opinions/reasons							
Vary type of sentence more							
Vary your vocabulary more							
QUALITY OF LANGUAGE							
Check verb tenses and formation							
Check spellings and accents							
Check word order							
Check nouns and genders							
Check adjectives and agreements							



## Checklist for final submission

Centre number

Specification number

<b>T</b> 1 ·	
Teaching	group
	8

Language

each piece of work/unit/tape referenced with name, date, and title

conditions of each piece of work/unit/tape noted, eg homework, controlled

copies of stimulus materials included

first drafts included as necessary

approximate word-count requirement met for each student

appropriate coverage of topic areas

final marks entered on frontsheet

frontsheet signed by the teacher

all units secured in a paper folder

each unit has been assessed globally

## GCSE Modern Foreign Languages Coursework Frontsheet for Paper 4C: Writing Coursework

NB: A copy of any stimulus material used should be included in the candidate's folder. Short course candidates submit only 2 units and the total mark is out of 40.

Candidate Name									Candidate N <sup>o</sup>	)	
(Bloc	ck capitals pl	lease)									
Centre Name										Centre Nº	
Lang	ruage									Spec. Nº	
Unit Nº			luding stimulus ed)	iding stimulus number of	Controlled/ not controlled	Candidate's marks			For Edexcel use only		
			,			Communication (Max = 10)	Application (Max = 5)	Accuracy (Max = 5)	Total (Max = 20)	Moderator total	TL
1											
2											
3											
Те		nereby certify to t sistance beyond th				been produced w sessment.	vithout any		Total mark	For Edexcel u	-
		-		ž					(Max 60)	Moderator total	TL
Name	e of examining	y teacher (Block ca	pitals please)		Signature		Date				

CF1

## Appendix 5 – Key skills

This GCSE offers a range of opportunities for students to:

- ÷ develop their key skills
- ÷ generate assessed evidence for their portfolio.

In particular, the following key skills can be developed through this specification at level 2:

- + information technology
- + improving own learning and performance
- + working with others
- + \*communication.

\* Although learning a modern foreign language will greatly assist in the development of effective communication skills, it is important to stress that evidence for the key skill of communication can only be evidenced in English, Irish or Welsh.

Copies of the key skills specifications can be ordered from Edexcel Publications.

The individual key skills units are divided into three parts:

- Part A: what you need to know this identifies the underpinning knowledge and skills required of the student
- Part B: what you must do this identifies the evidence that students must produce for their portfolio
- + Part C: guidance this gives examples of possible activities and types of evidence that may be generated.

This GCSE specification signposts development and internal assessment opportunities which are based on Part B of the level 2 key skills units. For those students working at level 1, these level 2 opportunities can also be used to generate evidence at level 1. Reference should be made to the appropriate level 1 statements in the key skills specifications.

The evidence generated through this GCSE will be internally assessed and contribute to the student's key skills portfolio. In order to achieve the key skills qualification, students will need to take the additional external tests associated with communication, information technology and application of number. Centres should check the current position on proxy qualifications as some students may be exempt from part or all of the assessment of a specific key skill.

Each paper (listening, speaking, reading and writing) within all the modern foreign language GCSEs featured in this specification will provide opportunities for the development of the key skills identified. This appendix identifies the key skills evidence requirements and also provides a mapping of those opportunities. Students will need to have opportunities to develop their skills over time before they are ready for assessment. This appendix contains illustrative activities for each key skill that will aid development and facilitate the generation of appropriate portfolio evidence. To assist in the recording of key skills evidence Edexcel has produced recording documentation which can be ordered from Edexcel Publications.

## Mapping of key skills: summary table

Key skills (level 2)	Paper 1	Paper 2	Paper 3	Paper 4
Information technology				
IT2.1	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>
IT2.2			<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	V
IT2.3				✓
Working with others				
WO2.1	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	v	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	✓
WO2.2	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	v	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	✓
WO2.3	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	v	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	✓
Improving own learning and perform	nance			
LP2.1	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	v	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	✓
LP2.2	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	v	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>
LP2.3	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	V	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>
Communication				
C2.1a	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	V		
C2.1b		v		<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>
C2.2		v	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>
C2.3				<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>

## Information technology level 2

When producing work for any of the GCSEs in this specification, students will have numerous opportunities to use information technology. The Internet, CD ROM, etc could be used to collect information. Documents can be produced using relevant software and images may be incorporated in those documents. Early drafts of documents could be E-mailed to tutors for initial comments and feedback.

As part of their modern foreign language programme students may not be able to generate sufficient evidence required for this unit, for example working with numbers through the use of a spreadsheet application, or some aspects of database use. In this situation, students may use standalone IT sessions for development and evidence generation and/or other parts of their GCSE course.

Key ski	ill portfolio evidence requirement	GCSE paper(s)	Opportunities for development or internal assessment
IT2.1	Search for and select information for <b>two</b> different purposes	1, 2, 3, 4	Students will need to identify suitable sources of information and effectively search for information using multiple criteria. Information selected should be interpreted and students should decide what is relevant for their purpose.
			A student could, using key words, search, locate and extract target-language information from the Internet or other ICT sources on a given topic as appropriate to the activity (eg reviewing a tourist bulletin of a given locality and then selecting suitable holiday activities for different people with specific interests or requirements).
IT2.2	Explore and develop information, and derive new information, for <b>two</b> different purposes	3, 4	Students are required to bring together information in formats, such as tables, that help development. The information should be explored by, for example, changing information in a spreadsheet model. Information should also be developed and new information derived as appropriate, for example through the use of headings, tables, charts and graphs.
			New information could be derived from websites, eg football league table or another sports-related source from a target-language country, and this could be compared with results from the previous year and, using different formulae, converted into tables. This could provide a stimulus for further research and language development, eg students could discover more information about a certain club and key players.
			Eg a student could undertake research into the 'Most Popular Weekend Activities' identified by contributors to an Internet discussion group in the target language. This information could be transferred into a table and provide a stimulus for an article (to be word processed in the target language). Additionally, students could contribute to the online discussion.

Key skill portfolio evidence requirement		GCSE paper(s)	Opportunities for development or internal assessment
IT2.3	Present combined information for <b>two</b> different purposes This work must include at least <b>one</b> example of text, <b>one</b> example of images and <b>one</b> example of numbers	4	In presenting combined information students will need to select and use appropriate layouts in a consistent way through, for example, the use of margins, headings, borders, font size, etc. Layouts, etc should be refined to suit both the purpose and the needs of the audience (early drafts should be kept as portfolio evidence). The final piece of work should be suitable for its purpose and audience, eg GCSE coursework, OHTs/handouts for a presentation, etc. The document should have accurate spelling (use of spell-checker) and have been proofread. Eg a student could undertake a task such as the 'Weekend Activities' article (see IT2.2) and develop this as a piece of word-processed extended writing in the target language. This could possibly be enhanced with suitable graphics and charts/tables. The student would choose a suitable layout and insert symbols as appropriate to the target language.

### Evidence

Student evidence for information technology could include:

- ÷ tutor observation records
- ÷ notes of sources used
- ÷ printouts with annotations
- ÷ draft documents.

## Working with others level 2

To achieve this key skill, students are required to carry out at least two activities. One example must show that they can work in one-to-one situations and one example must show that they can work in group situations. Students will plan their work with others and confirm working arrangements, work cooperatively towards achieving identified objectives, and exchange information on progress.

Key skil	l portfolio evidence requirement	GCSE paper(s)	Opportunities for development or internal assessment		
WO2.1	Plan straightforward work with others, identifying objectives and clarifying responsibilities, and confirm working arrangements	1, 2, 3, 4	Students should identify the objectives of working together and the tasks, resources and timescales required to meet these objectives. Information should be exchanged to clarify responsibilities, for example suggesting ways help can be given, asking what others can do, checking their own and others' responsibilities. The group needs to confirm responsibilities and working arrangements.		
			Eg students agree tasks and responsibilities for carrying out a project comparing likes and dislikes about school with other class members, undertaking research, planning questionnaires, writing articles.		
			Eg students plan an informative web page or video project on their town intended for a target-language audience.		
WO2.2	Work cooperatively with others towards achieving identified objectives, organising tasks to meet responsibilities	1, 2, 3, 4	Students will need to organise tasks so that responsibilities can be met, for example obtaining resources, completing tasks on time, etc. Tasks should be completed accurately and safely. Cooperative ways of working should be supported through, for example, anticipating the needs of others, avoiding actions that offend, etc. Advice from others, including group members, tutor, etc, should be sought when needed. Eg students actively engage in activities to ensure completion of the 'School' project as mentioned above.		
WO2.3	Exchange information on progress and agree ways of improving work with others to help achieve objectives	1, 2, 3, 4	Once completed the full group needs to review outcomes against the agreed objectives. In doing this they should identify what has gone well and what has gone less well. Students should listen and respond to progress reports from others and agree ways of improving work with others to help achieve objectives.		
			Eg students react appropriately to assessment from teacher and peers – acknowledging areas of weakness and identifying ways to improve target-language performance.		

## Evidence

Student evidence for working with others could include:

- + tutor observation records
- + preparatory notes
- ÷ records of process and progress made.

## Improving own learning and performance level 2

Within these MFL GCSEs, students will have opportunities to develop and generate evidence that meets part of the evidence requirement of this key skill.

To achieve this key skill, students will need to provide at least **two** examples of meeting the standard required. Students are also required to improve their performance through studying a straightforward subject and through learning through a straightforward practical activity. This GCSE in Italian will provide opportunities for students to study a straightforward subject. Evidence for learning through a practical activity may come from other GCSEs in the students' programme or from enrichment activities.

# Activities that generate evidence for this skill should take place over a period of a few weeks. Over the period of the activity there will be times when the students should work without close supervision. However, students should seek and receive feedback, from tutors and others, on their target setting and performance.

Any project work (including coursework) is a suitable learning activity and may be used to generate evidence for this key skill.

Key skill	l portfolio evidence requirement	GCSE paper(s)	Opportunities for development or internal assessment
LP2.1	Help set short-term targets with an appropriate person and plan how these will be met	1, 2, 3, 4	Students plan how they are to meet short-term targets with an appropriate person, eg agreeing a project with their tutor. This will include setting realistic targets and action points. Review dates with, for example, their tutor should be built into the plan. Eg discussing planning and research procedures for a given coursework task and agreeing a deadline for plan and/or initial draft. This could be adapted for non-coursework tasks across all skills.
LP2.2	<ul> <li>Take responsibility for some decisions about your learning, using your plan and support from others to help meet targets</li> <li>Improve your performance by:</li> <li>studying a straightforward subject</li> <li>learning through a straightforward practical activity</li> </ul>	1, 2, 3, 4	The plan should be implemented with performance reviews and should include working for short periods without close supervision. Eg agree to undertake independent study/homework as directed and respond to teacher guidance, interpreting general teacher/feedback and identifying errors within texts through consulting reference books, teacher or language assistant.

Key skill portfolio evidence requirement		GCSE paper(s)	Opportunities for development or internal assessment
LP2.3	Review progress with an appropriate person and provide evidence of your achievements, including how you have used learning from one task to meet the demands of a new task	1, 2, 3, 4	<ul><li>Students should review their own progress with the help, for example, of their tutor. They should identify, with evidence, what and how they have learned and provide information on what has gone well and what has gone less well, targets met, providing evidence of achievements from relevant sources. They should identify, with for example their tutor, action for improving their performance.</li><li>Eg target-setting review meeting may reveal that a student has developed a wide vocabulary but needs to be more secure with a range of tenses.</li><li>Eg asking for advice and guidance from the teacher when referring to marked work.</li></ul>

## Evidence

Student evidence for improving own learning and performance could include:

- + tutor records
- + annotated action plans
- + records of discussions
- + learning log
- + work produced.

## **Communication level 2**

For the communication key skill, students are required to hold discussions and give presentations, read and summarise information, and write documents. Students will be able to develop all of these skills through an appropriate teaching and learning programme based on this GCSE specification.

Key ski	ll portfolio evidence requirement	GCSE paper(s)	Opportunities for development or internal assessment
C2.1a	Contribute to a discussion about a straightforward subject	1, 2	Many of the topics in this specification are suitable as the basis of a group discussion. The discussion should be about a straightforward subject. This may be a subject often met in their studies, etc and the vocabulary will be familiar. During the discussion students should make clear and relevant contributions, listen and respond to others, helping to move the discussion forward.
			Eg students choose a topic for discussion about different types of film. They would prepare this and then contribute to a class/group discussion. This activity would encourage students to give and justify opinions.
C2.1b	Give a short talk about a straightforward subject, using an image	2, 4	Following a period of research students could be given the opportunity to give a short talk to the rest of their group.
			During the talk students should speak clearly in a way that suits the subject and situation. They should keep to the subject. The structure of the talk should help listeners follow points made. The talk should include an image to illustrate main points clearly. Images could include charts and diagrams, pictures or models, maps, etc.
			Eg a student could make a short presentation about their work experience. The presentation could be enhanced with a copy of a page from the work diary to illustrate the daily work routine and activities undertaken.

Key sk	ill portfolio evidence requirement	GCSE paper(s)	Opportunities for development or internal assessment		
C2.2	Read and summarise information from <b>two</b> extended documents about a straightforward subject	2, 3, 4	Students will have a number of opportunities to read and synthesise information from two extended documents, for example as part of their preparation for the discussion and talk, or as preparation for a piece of written work for their GCSE.		
	One of the documents should include at least <b>one</b> image		Extended documents may include textbooks and reports and articles of more than three pages. At least one of these documents should contain an image from which students can draw appropriate and relevant information.		
			Students will need to select and read relevant material. From this information they will need to identify accurately the lines of reasoning and main points from the text and images. Students will then need to summarise this information in a form that suits the purpose, eg for a talk, discussion or an essay.		
			Eg a student could read two extended letters from students living in a country where the target language is spoken giving information about and their views on a particular topic (eg school life). Students could then extract and summarise the main points from each letter.		
C2.3	Write <b>two</b> different types of documents about straightforward subjects	4	Students are required to produce two different types of document. At least one of these should be an extended document, for example a report or an essay of more than three pages.		
	One piece of writing should be an extended document and include at least <b>one</b> image		The document should present relevant information in an appropriate form. At least one of the documents should include an appropriate image that contains and effectively conveys relevant information. The information in the document should be clearly structured, eg through the use of headings, paragraphs, etc.		
			Students should ensure that the text is legible and that spelling, punctuation and grammar are accurate.		
			Eg a student could undertake an essay about a special occasion or visit. They could enhance the presentation with an annotated story board incorporating photographs, drawings, etc. This would be ideal preparation for the development of extended writing skills. Students could write a letter about a different topic as a contrasting activity.		

### Evidence

Student evidence for communication could include:

- + tutor observation records
- + preparatory notes
- + audio/video tapes
- ÷ notes based on documents read
- ÷ essays.

```
ma071200S:\LT\PD\GCSE\Italian (1237).1-113/7
```

Further copies of this publication are available from Edexcel Publications, Adamsway, Mansfield, Notts, NG18 4FN

Telephone 01623 467467 Fax 01623 450481 E-mail: publications@linneydirect.com

Order Code UG008963 December 2000

For more information on Edexcel qualifications please contact our Customer Response Centre on 0870 240 9800 or E-mail: enquiries@edexcel.org.uk or visit our website: www.edexcel.org.uk

Edexcel Foundation is a registered charity and a Company Limited By Guarantee Registered in England No. 1686164

